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This report:

• Covers the period 1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018

• Is prepared for the Minister for Health, the Parliament of Victoria and the community we serve

• Is prepared in accordance with government and legislative requirements and FRD 30B guidelines

• Is prepared for presentation to the community at The Kilmore & District Hospital’s Annual General Meeting in November 2018

• Acknowledges the support of our community

• Respects our environment and is printed in Ecostar Silk 100% recycled stock

Acknowledgement of Traditional Owners:
The Kilmore & District Hospital respectfully acknowledges the traditional custodians of the land on which its facilities stand as 
the Taungurung people.
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Comprehensive acute and aged care services are 
provided to our rapidly increasing catchment population. 
In 2017-18 over 3,000 patients were treated, 258 
babies born, more than 100 residents accommodated, 
over 300 staff employed and with operating expenditure 
amounts in excess of $22.6 million.

This Annual Report should be read in conjunction with 
our 2017-18 Quality of Care Account Calendar. Both 
documents are available on our website.

Our Vision

The community sees The Kilmore & District Hospital 
and Aged Care Services as the preferred provider and 
facilitator for its whole-of-life health related service.

Our Mission

The Kilmore & District Hospital and Aged Care Services 
will provide the community with high quality progressive 
health care and accommodation.

Our Values

• RESPECT: We recognise the rights, beliefs and 
choice of every individual

• EXCELLENCE: We demonstrate a commitment to 
quality, innovation and continuous improvement

• ACCOUNTABILITY: We take responsibility for our 
decisions, actions, attitudes and health

• COMPASSION: We consistently act with empathy 
and compassion

• HONESTY: We are open, ethical, and fair

Our Priorities

• Quality of care for our patients, residents and clients

• Care and development of workforce

• Business continuity

• Connection with the community

• Strategic relationships

About Our Organisation

The Kilmore & District Hospital is located in Victoria in the 
Mitchell Shire and services a population over 35,000 that extends 
to Broadford and Pyalong in the north, Wallan and Craigieburn 
in the south, Lancefield and Romsey to the west, and Whittlesea 
to the east.

RESPECT EXCELLENCE ACCOUNTABILITY COMPASSION HONESTY
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It has been another busy year for The Kilmore & District 
Hospital as we continue to focus on providing the best 
possible care for our patients, residents and clients. 
We continue to embrace improvements to the way we 
provide patient centred care as we further develop the 
model of service provision to meet the growing and 
changing needs of our community.

We continued to experience high demand on our 
services in 2017-18, with the hospital caring for over 
3,000 inpatients, 6,000 outpatients and 9,000 patients 
requiring urgent care. In addition our maternity service 
welcomed 258 babies into the world. 

In the hospital we operated 24 inpatient beds 
supporting patients needing acute, restorative and 
end-of-life care. Our hospital occupancy has increased 
by greater than 10% during the past year with over 900 
more days of care provided.

In 2017-18 our aged care services welcomed 22 new 
permanent residents and supported 23 individuals to 
access 30 periods of respite. Caladenia Nursing Home 
supported 38 care recipients during the year providing 
9,925 beddays with occupancy of 91%. Dianella Village 
Hostel supported 52 care recipients throughout the year, 
providing 10,708 beddays with occupancy of 98%.  

Our Home-based services are provided to support and 
assist elderly people and people with disabilities, living 
at home or in the community, and their families. Our 
District Nursing Service delivered 5,690 visits in 2017-
18 and we provided over 10,500 meals to the local 
community through Meals on Wheels, over 1,500 more 
meals than last year.

Governance and Leadership

We have continued to enhance and strengthen our 
governance of safety and quality across our organisation 
over the past year. The further development of 
our performance dashboard for safety and quality, 
workforce and finance information to the Board, Board 
Committees and Operational Committees has improved 
transparency and accountability across our organisation. 

The Kilmore & District Hospital was the recipient of 
the 2017 Victorian Healthcare Association Innovation 
in Clinical Governance Award sponsored by the 
Australian Centre for Healthcare Governance. The 
award recognised the improvements in governance 
demonstrating an enhanced leadership culture, 
supported by integrated systems and processes and 
strong consumer partnerships to ensure safe, effective 
high quality patient centred care.

In 2017-18 we introduced our Recognising Excellence 
Staff Awards to promote and highlight outstanding 
achievements demonstrated during the year. The 
awards covered five categories each representing 
a governance domain: leadership and culture, 
clinical and corporate effectiveness, consumer 
partnerships, workforce and risk management. Twenty 
five nominations were received with a winner for 
each domain awarded and six highly commended 
nominations recognised. In addition an overarching 
award was presented to the recipient whose 
achievement addressed all five governance domains. 
Awards are a great way to reflect on the work we 
do, and to measure and celebrate the difference our 
people make. The variety of nominees highlighted that 
innovative ideas and dedicated professionalism are 
thriving right across the organisation. The recipients of 
our 2017-18 Excellence Awards are highlighted in the 
feature insert on page 4. 

Five emerging nursing leaders were supported with 
management training scholarships to participate in the 
Clinician 2 Manager program designed and presented 
by the Australian Academy of Clinical Leadership. This 
program was undertaken over six months (January to 
June) with a face to face workshop each month and is 
designed to accelerate the transition from clinician to 
manager focusing on the work that clinical managers 
must do to perform in their roles. The following 
members of our nursing workforce were awarded 
scholarships and successfully completed the program:

• Denise Brennan, Associate Nurse Unit Manager 
Urgent Care Centre

• Sue Hayes, Associate Nurse Unit Manager Inpatient 
Services

• Anne Holt, Associate Nurse Unit Manager 
Perioperative Services

• Bernadette Lavars, Manager Dianella Village Hostel

• Shency Pereppadan, Registered Nurse Aged Care 
Services.

The year saw the commencement of our partnership 
with the Studer Group and the implementation of a 
program aimed at creating a culture of excellence 
through healthcare coaching and cultural transformation. 
The initial stage of this work has seen the engagement 
of the senior leadership group to develop and upskill 
their proactive people management strategies and the 
revamp of our organisational values. The values work 
was completed in consultation with our dedicated 
workforce with the launch of REACH taking place on the 
25th June 2018. 

Our Director of Clinical and Aged Care Services, Kate 
Pryde resigned in April 2018 to pursue other career 

Board Chair and CEO Message

In accordance with the Financial Management Act 1994, we are 
pleased to present The Kilmore & District Hospital Annual Report 
for the year ending 30 June 2018.
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opportunities. An acting Director of Nursing & Midwifery 
role was filled by Tania Nicholson while the position was 
reviewed and the recruitment process undertaken.

There have been a number of other changes to our 
senior leadership team with the following people 
appointed and welcomed to the team:

• Ms Justine Muston to the Manager Health 
Information position; and

• Ms Janine Radford to the Nurse Unit Manager 
Caladenia Nursing Home.

Service Development

In 2017-18 we completed the implementation actions 
addressing 20 of the 21 recommendations received 
from an external review of our maternity service 
undertaken in 2016.  The purpose of the review was 
to critically analyse our self-assessment against the 
Victorian Maternity and Newborn Capability Framework, 
including clinical governance, clinical risk management, 
maternity staff education and professional competency 
requirements and equipment. The organisation has 
made significant improvements in the training and 
development of our maternity service workforce and the 
strengthening of our service capability.

Our surgical and health information teams were kept 
busy working with our partner agencies to support 
patients waiting for surgery to have their procedure 
sooner and provided locally (where safe to do so). A 
new partnership was established with Austin Health 
in early 2018 to treat people waiting for elective 
surgery. The Kilmore & District Hospital undertook 
661 procedures during 2017-18 for people waiting 
for elective procedures at either Northern Health or 
Austin Health with the majority of this activity occurring 
between April and June 2018. To support this significant 
increase in activity a new pre-admission clinic was 
established to streamline processes for our patients.

During 2017-18 our Urgent Care service implemented 
a new medical workforce model to better support the 
needs of our community. The new model rosters a 
doctor in the Urgent Care Centre (UCC) for a 12 hour 
shift from 10.00am until 10.00pm seven days per week. 
Outside of these hours the doctor is on-call for the UCC 
and provides telephone advice for the nursing team. 
This model has been well received by our patients and 
the UCC nursing team.

In November 2017 we officially launched our new 
eyeConnect device with The Royal Victorian Eye and 
Ear Hospital (the Eye and Ear). The eyeConnect device 
connects patients who present with eye injuries or 
conditions at the UCC with specialist staff at the Eye 
and Ear, without the patient having to travel into East 
Melbourne. This new technology has assisted our 
urgent care clinicians to identify when a patient can be 
managed locally and avoid travelling long distances 
unnecessarily.

The refurbishment of the Caladenia Nursing Home 
commenced after a significant amount of preliminary 
work was completed to ensure that the design met the 
needs of our residents and staff and that the project 
would be undertaken in the most cost effective way. 

Acknowledgements

The Kilmore & District Hospital’s achievements are not 
possible without the commitment and professionalism 
of our 326 staff, along with the outstanding support of 
our expanding team of Visiting Medical Officers. We 
take this opportunity to recognise their dedication to our 
community. This commitment ensures that we continue 
to provide high quality care to our patients.

Our community remains supportive and engaged and 
our 100 volunteers are the heart and soul of our health 
and aged care services. This dedicated group offer their 
time to help others and make the patient experience 
a more positive and memorable one. We thank them 
sincerely for their wonderful contribution to The Kilmore 
& District Hospital. 

We recognise the vital contribution that consumers 
can make to how we plan, design and deliver services 
and recognise the need to further embed engagement 
in all aspects of the organisation.  Our commitment 
to effective community consultation continues to be 
supported by our Community Advisory Committee and 
we recognise and thank the members for their support 
during the 2017-18 year.  

We would like to extend our thanks to four dedicated 
Board members and we thank them for their valued 
contribution to the governance of The Kilmore & District 
Hospital.  Mr John Dixon, Ms Camille Lawson, Dr Leonard 
Whitehouse and Mr Allan Willcox. 

We also welcome Ms Wendy Kelly, Mr Vincent Childs, 
Mr Chris Adams and Mr Terry Lannan to the Board.

A number of independent external experts sit on our 
governance committees and we would like to sincerely 
thank these people for their willingness to share their 
expertise and time.

The Kilmore & District Hospital is most grateful for the 
generosity of its supporters.  Financial support from our 
loyal donors helps the hospital to continue its work in 
providing high quality services for our local community.  
We are sincerely grateful to our Hospital Auxiliary 
and Opportunity Shop Committee members for the 
contribution they make year after year to The Kilmore & 
District Hospital.

We recommend our Annual Report to you and have 
pleasure in sharing the wonderful achievements of our 
team during the 2017-18 year.

Assoc. Prof. Peter Nottle

Chair, Board of Directors

Sue Race

Chief Executive Officer
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Recognising Excellence Staff Awards

The Recognising Excellence Staff Awards are an opportunity for 
individuals and teams to promote and highlight any outstanding 
results they have achieved.

Individuals and teams are encouraged to submit nominations if 
they have introduced, revised, modified or changed any aspect of 
work which has resulted in an improvement to our organisation.

These awards are classified according to the domains of 
Governance: Leadership and Culture, Effectiveness, Consumer 
Partnerships, Workforce and Risk Management.

In addition an overarching award is presented to the recipient 
whose achievement addressed all five Governance domains.  The 
overarching award was received by Anne Hussey from the Leisure 
and Lifestyle team at Dianella Hostel.

Leadership and 
Culture

Winner

Anne Hussey from Dianella Hostel for improving the garden environment for residents to 
enjoy and supporting social inclusion

Highly Commended 

Caroline Albers from Dianella Hostel for being a fabulous role model and leader

Clinical and 
Corporate 
Effectiveness 

Winner

Admissions Team for the introduction of a system to more accurately track patient medical 
records

Highly Commended

Standard 8 Pressure Injury Team for improving the prevention and management of 
pressure injuries

Highly Commended

Environmental Services for aspiring to excellent cleaning standards

Consumer 
Partnerships

Winner

District Nursing Service for their responsive community care supporting the delivery of 
person and family centred end-of-life care

Highly Commended

Volunteer Deb Davis for increasing consumer and community engagement in the hospital 
setting

Workforce Winner

Theatre Services for improving the hospital’s ability to meet service capability requirements

Highly Commended

Anne Lewis in People & Culture for improving the quality of TKDH’s compliance in 
credentialling of Visiting Medical Officers

Risk Management Winner

Maternity Services Team for Improving risk management of intrapartum care

Highly Commended

Gabrielle Hanson, Manager Quality, Safety and Risk for Improved frequency and content 
of quality, safety and risk education

Nomination
Categories

LEADERSHIP EFFECTIVENESS

CONSUMER
PARTNERSHIPS

WORKFORCE

RISK
MANAGEMENT

NOMINATION
CATEGORIES

& CULTURE 
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Our History
The Kilmore & District Hospital

1854
• Hospital name was established

1858
• The community raised funds of 1269 pounds 

and the Government granted 500 pounds 
for the building of a hospital

1860
• Hospital opened and 86 patients treated 

in the first year
• The original hospital is the second oldest of 

Victoria’s District Hospitals and the most intact 

1864
• The Kilmore Hospital was incorporated under 

the provisions of the Hospitals & Charities Act 
on 17 November 1864

1975
• The Hospital 20-bed ward was completed 

1984
• On the 29 July 1984 the extensions including 

the services wing and clinical support facilities 
were officially opened

1988
• On the 23 November 1988, The Kilmore Hospital 

changed its name to The Kilmore & District 
Hospital to reflect the growing area that it served 

1995
• A major redevelopment project costing $2.2 

million was completed on the 26 June 1995 
• Works included the renovations of existing 
operating theatre, general administration, the 

provision of new birthing suites, wards, 
a new accident and emergency area and 10 
additional acute patient beds, increasing the 

total number of beds to 30 beds

2002
• In 2002 an extension was built at the rear of the 

hospital to accommodate a dedicated reception 
for our Diagnostic Imaging service, capacity for 

the new CT scanner and ultrasound service 

2007
• Theatre Suite was renovated to ensure 

compliance with infection control standards 
and efficiency of patient service

2008
• Hospital reception area was upgraded

2015
• $20 million capital redevelopment was 

completed, including a dedicated outpatient 
facility, a second surgical suite, a day stay 

recovery area and an additional 
30 acute inpatient beds

• The project allowed for conversion of the 
existing consulting rooms into student 

accommodation and additional car parking

Caladenia Nursing Home

1987
• On the 8 January 1987, The 

Kilmore Nursing Home Society was 
registered as a benevolent society 
under the provisions of the Hospital 
and Charities Act 1958 

1988
• Approval in principle to build 

Caladenia was received on the 25 
May 1988 when we had funds in-
hand of just $12,770

• Three year fund raising campaign 
commenced with $1,502,730 in 
cash donations received over this 
time; $768,000 was received from 
the Commonwealth Government

1989
• The Kilmore & District Nursing Home 

Society Inc. was incorporated under 
the Associations incorporation Act 
1981 on 31 October 1989

1991
• The construction of our 30 bed 

Nursing Home was completed 
during the 1990-91 financial year

• Our first resident moved in on the 17 
June 1991

• Caladenia Nursing Home was 
officially opened on the 11 August 
1991

2016
• The Sensory Garden was opened on 

the 11 August 2016. This initiative 
was supported by a $10,000 grant 
from the Maggie Beer Foundation

Dianella Village Hostel

1994
• The Commonwealth Department of 

Human Services and Health granted 
approval in principle for a 30 bed 
Aged Care Hostel on 20 December 
1994

1995
• A major fundraising appeal was 

launched in 1995 with magnificent 
community support. Total donations 
of $707,000 were received. 
Together with the Commonwealth 
Government contribution of 
$847,000, Department of Veterans 
Affairs contribution of $160,000 
and the Hospital contribution and 
borrowings, the total project funding 
and cost was $2.1m

1997
• The construction of our 30 bed 

Hostel was completed during 1997
• Our first resident moved in on the 18 

August 1997
• Dianella Village Hostel was officially 

opened on the 21 August 1997

1987

1988

1989

1991

2016

1994

2015

2008

2007

2002

1995

1988

1984

1975

1864

1860

1858

1854

1995

1997
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The Board of Directors is appointed by the Governor in 
Council on the recommendation of the Victorian Minister 
for Health and is governed by the principles contained 
within the Health Services Act 1988 (as amended).  The 
Board provides governance of The Kilmore & District 
Hospital and is responsible for its financial performance, 
strategic directions, the quality of its health care services 
and strengthening community involvement through 
greater partnerships. 

The Kilmore & District Hospital by-laws enable the 
Board to delegate certain responsibilities. The by-
laws are supported by the delegations of executive 
and operational responsibility, enabling designated 
executives and staff to perform their duties through the 
exercise of specified authority. 

The Board meets monthly during the year with eleven 
General Committee Meetings and one special meeting 
focussing on strategic directions and planning.  The 
Board Charter specifies a minimum of ten meetings 
to be held during the twelve month period and Board 
Directors are required to attend a minimum of eight 
meetings each year.  Twelve meetings were held during 
the year and all Board Directors met the attendance 
requirement with the exception of two members who 
resigned prior to the end of their term.

 Date = First 2017-18 
 Appointment Attendance

Board Assoc. Prof. Peter Nottle 
Chair 1 July 2016 12

Board Ms Ulla Lonnqvist 
Vice Chair 1 July 2014 12

Directors Mr Wally Arnott 
  1 January 1978# 3

 Mrs Julia McGill 
  1 November 2005 12

  Ms Kathryn Harris 
  1 July 2016 11

  Mr Chris Adams 
  1 July 2017## 6

  Mr Vincent Childs 
  1 July 2017 12

 Mrs Wendy Kelly 
  1 July 2017 12

  Mr Terry Lannan 
  1 July 2017 12

# Mr Wally Arnott resigned from the Board of Directors in October 2017 
which was accepted by the Governor in Council on 20 March 2018.

## Mr Chris Adams resigned from the Board of Directors in January 2018 
which was accepted by the Governor in Council on 20 March 2018.

Board of Directors and Board Subcommittees

The Board of Directors is appointed by the Governor in Council 
on the recommendation of the Victorian Minister for Health.

Audit and Enterprise Risk Committee 

The Audit and Enterprise Risk Committee membership 
comprises a minimum of three Board Directors and 
at least two members independent of the agency, 
in accordance with the independence requirements 
of the Standing Directions of the Minister of Finance 
under the Financial Management Act 1994. The Chair 
of the Committee is one of the independent members 
of the Committee and is nominated by the Audit and 
Enterprise Risk Committee on an annual basis.  

The Audit and Enterprise Risk Committee membership 
included the following Board Directors: Ms Kathryn 
Harris, Ms Ulla Lonnqvist, Mr Vincent Childs, Mr Chris 
Adams (until January 2018) and Mr Terry Lannan (from 
February 2018).  In 2017-18 the independent members 
were Mr Peter Appleton, Mr David Doherty OAM and Mr 
Graham Thomson with Mr Peter Appleton nominated as 
Committee Chair for the year.

The Audit and Enterprise Risk Committee meets bi-
monthly and assists the Board in monitoring compliance 
with laws, regulations, standards and internal controls. 

Key responsibilities for the Audit and Enterprise Risk 
Committee include monitoring the hospital’s strategic 
and operational risks, developing the hospital’s strategic 
internal audit plan, oversight of the Internal Audit 
Program, review of the draft Annual Accounts and 
review of the relevant risk policies and procedures. 
All the committee members are independent of 
management. 

Clinical Governance Committee

The Clinical Governance Committee membership 
comprises a minimum of three Board Directors and two 
independent clinical experts. The membership included 
the following Board Directors: Mrs Julia McGill (Chair),   
Mr Wally Arnott (until October 2017), Ms Kathryn Harris 
(from March 2018); Associate Professor Peter Nottle; 
and Mr Terry Lannan. The independent members 
appointed to the committee were Ms Chris Best and   
Dr Megan Robb.

The Clinical Governance Committee aims to ensure 
that the community receives high quality and safe care 
close to home and that The Kilmore & District Hospital 
is committed to the constant improvement of all clinical 
and care services. The committee meets bi-monthly to 
review and analyse information detailing the clinical care 
activities undertaken at The Kilmore & District Hospital.
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Community Advisory Committee 

The Community Advisory Committee membership 
comprises a minimum of two Board Directors and up 
to eight consumer members who represent a diverse 
community perspective. The Chair of the committee is a 
consumer member of the committee and is nominated 
by the Community Advisory Committee. 

The Community Advisory Committee membership 
included the following Board Directors: Mrs Wendy Kelly, 
Ms Kathryn Harris and Mr Terry Lannan (until December 
2017). 

Five consumer consultants sit on the Community 
Advisory Committee: Mrs Helen Clancy, Ms Gwenda 
Phillips, Mrs Debbie Davies, Ms Julie Metaxotos and 
Mr Tom Thomson. In accordance with the Terms 
of Reference a consumer member now holds the 
position of committee chair, and we are grateful for 
the work of Gwenda Phillips, Debbie Davies and Julie 
Metaxotos as Chairs in 2017-18. We also continue to 
benefit from the involvement of a young community 
member; Ms Maneet Hora, who is eager to provide 
her input to the committee and attends as an invitee 
around her school commitments.

The Community Advisory Committee meets bi-monthly 
and advises the Board on consumer and community 
participation in the development and delivery of services.  

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee membership included 
the following Board Directors: Associate Professor Peter 
Nottle (Chair), Mrs Julia McGill and Ms Ulla Lonnqvist.

The Remuneration Committee meets quarterly and 
makes assessments and recommendations to the 
Board concerning the performance against the 
agreed Performance Plan, remuneration and terms 
and conditions of employment for the Chief Executive 
Officer. The committee also provides oversight of the 
remuneration and conditions of employment of the 
Directors of the hospital. 



8 THE KILMORE & DISTRICT HOSPITAL
ANNUAL REPORT 2017-2018

Chief Executive Officer 

Mrs Sue Race
BAgrSc (Hons) BNutDiet MPPM 
FCHSM

The Chief Executive Officer 
is accountable to the Board 
for executive leadership and 
management of operational, policy 
and strategic goals agreed with the 
Board and in accordance with the 
funding, planning and regulatory 
framework of the Victorian 
Government Department of Health 
and Human Services.

Director Clinical and Aged Care 
Services

Chief Nursing and Midwifery 
Officer

The Director Clinical and Aged 
Care Services is responsible for 
overseeing the inpatient and 
non-admitted clinical services, 
after-hours’ coordination, clinical 
support, allied health and aged 
care services. As Chief Nursing 
and Midwifery Officer, the role also 
has professional responsibility and 
leadership for all nursing staff, the 
clinical competence framework and 
nurse education. 

Ms Kate Pryde resigned from this 
position in April 2018 with Ms Tania 
Nicholson assuming the role of 
Acting Director Nursing & Midwifery 
while the recruitment process was 
undertaken.

Director Development and 
Improvement 

Ms Kirrily Gilchrist 
BHIM

The Director Development and 
Improvement is accountable 
for the effective leadership 
and management of quality 
improvement, risk management 
and performance monitoring 
frameworks. This position is 
responsible for ensuring an effective, 
coordinated, organisation-wide 
approach to the provision of 
quality improvement, incident and 
risk management, patient safety, 
health information and knowledge 
management and service 
performance and planning. 

Director Medical Services

Chief Medical Officer

Dr Martin Duffy
MBBS MPH AFRACMA FANZCA 

The Director Medical Services 
is responsible for professional 
leadership of the medical workforce. 
This role is accountable for the 
maintenance of professional 
standards of medical staff ensuring 
best practice guidelines and patient 
centred care philosophies are 
followed. Clinical governance, risk 
management, service development 
and continuity of care form the 
cornerstone of this role.

Director Finance and Support 
Services

Chief Financial and 
Procurement Officer

Mr Colin Clark
BEc (Acc)

The Director Finance and Support 
Services is the Chief Financial 
and Procurement Officer and is 
responsible for providing financial 
management leadership and 
oversight of the organisational 
financial position. The position 
is also responsible for leading 
and managing the development 
of effective and efficient financial 
and corporate support services, 
including health support services, 
contracts and procurement, financial 
services and information technology 
services.

Executive Management
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Organisational Structure

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chief Executive Officer

Director Clinical & 
Aged Care Services

After Hours’ 
Coordination

Visiting Medical 
Officers

Quality, Safety & 
Risk Management

Finance

Inpatient 
Services

Patient & Resident 
Experience

Maternity 
Services

Health 
Information 

Management

Perioperative 
Services Performance 

Monitoring

Environmental 
Services

Urgent Care 
Services Service 

Planning

Food Services

Aged Care 
Services

Patient 
Admissions 

& Liaison

Infrastructure & 
Maintenance

District Nursing 
Services

Procurement 
Services

Clinical Support 
& Allied Health 

Services

Administrative 
Services

Information 
Technology

Director Medical 
Services

Director Development 
& Improvement

Director Finance & 
Support Services

People & Culture
Community 

Engagement
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The financial donations and funding we receive enable 
us to improve our services to patients through the 
purchase of new equipment.  In 2017-18 we received 
over $240,000 from our donors.

Our Major Donors, Corporate and 
Community Supporters 

Major Donors 

• Mr David Keath

• Mrs Wilma Keath

• The Kilmore & District Hospital Opportunity Shop 
Committee

• The Kilmore & District Hospital Auxiliary

• Estate of Brian Cushen

Donors

• Conundrum Holdings Pty Ltd

• The Over Family

• Mr N Hubbard

• Mr F Donovan

Community Supporters 

• Bunnings Warehouse Craigieburn

• Ivanhoe Grammar School (Mernda Campus)

• Kilmore Alcoholics Anonymous

• Kilmore Trackside

• Kilmore Country Music Festival

• Kilmore Toyota

• Mitchell Masonic Lodge

• Rotary Club of Southern Mitchell

• Seymour & District Car Club

• The Kilmore Men’s Shed

• Uniting Church Broadford

• Wallan Circle of Friendship

Hospital Auxiliary

We take this opportunity to thank our Hospital Auxiliary 
members who continue to raise vital funds both within 
the hospital and the wider community. In 2017-18 
the Auxiliary provided the hospital with funds raised in 
excess of $13,000.

The Hospital Auxiliary ran a number of fundraising 
events throughout the year including market stalls, 
cake stalls, the fashion parade and raffles.  Through 
their generous donations of gift hampers the Hospital 
Auxiliary support raffles run at Caladenia Nursing Home 
and Dianella Village Hostel during the year in addition 
to a Mother’s Day and Father’s Day raffle and the raffles 
supported by Kilmore Trackside.

Donors and Supporters

The Kilmore & District Hospital is most appreciative of the 
continued support of our donors, Hospital Auxiliary, Opportunity 
Shop Committee and volunteers.

The Hospital Auxiliary holds a stall at the Kilmore market 
during the warmer months and at Wellington Square 
(Wallan) indoor market during the winter months. One 
of their major events has been the successful Annual 
Fashion Parade bringing together local businesses and 
the community to enjoy a morning of fashion and fun.  
The Hospital trolley continues to be a great success 
with small items for sale to patients and visitors and 
the opportunity for a friendly conversation with auxiliary 
volunteers during their walk around the wards.  

The funds raised by the Hospital Auxiliary have 
supported the purchase of the following equipment: 
Pivot Sling Mesh, IV pole and stands, Plant Mulcher, 
Video Laryngoscope, Urgent Care Centre Storage 
systems; and an Insulin refrigerator.

Opportunity Shop Committee

A group of very dedicated volunteers run the Opp Shop 
Thursday, Friday and Saturday mornings and the profits 
raised directly benefit The Kilmore & District Hospital. 
The work of these volunteers is invaluable. Since the 
opening of the Opp Shop in November 2005, they have 
raised more than $500,000 which has been used to 
purchase equipment, furniture and services for both 
our Hospital and Aged Care Facilities. In 2017-18 the 
Opportunity Shop Committee provided the hospital with 
funds raised in excess of $50,000.

The funds raised by the Opportunity Shop Committee 
have supported the purchase of the following 
equipment: Diagnostic microscope, wall mounted 
Aneroid Sphygmomanometers and Observation 
Monitors.

Volunteers

The hospital is fortunate to have a very dedicated and 
growing group of volunteers who assist in a range of 
roles and offer that extra bit of help to reassure patients 
in need. This year we were fortunate to welcome 15 
new volunteers to The Kilmore & District Hospital, 
increasing our workforce to over 100 volunteers. 

Our volunteers have provided direct assistance to 
almost 500 patients and aged care recipients over 
the past year. These volunteers have on average 
given approximately 360 hours per week of their 
time. Volunteers assist in our Inpatient Unit, Theatre 
Suite, Aged Care Services, and Outpatient Consulting 
Suites and in external events and initiatives supported 
by the hospital. In addition we value the ongoing 
community service hours offered by students from The 
Kilmore International School and Assumption College 
Kilmore throughout the year. We sincerely thank all our 
volunteers for their hard work. 
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We also appreciate the contributions made by 
consumers who kindly provide their time to sit on 
our Community Advisory Board Subcommittee, act 
as patient ambassadors and are members of our 
consumer register. Our consumers make up a very 
special workforce who represent the voices of our 
patients. We currently have eleven consumers on our 
register who have partnered with the hospital to provide 
their feedback and help us work towards implementing 
positive changes across the hospital.

All volunteers are required to maintain a satisfactory 
Criminal Record Check and we are working towards the 
implementation of Working with Children Checks as part 
of our Child Safe Policy requirement.

Life Governors

An award of Life Governor may be conferred upon a 
person to recognise a significant contribution through 
voluntary, philanthropic and/or professional service to 
The Kilmore & District Hospital.

Service worthy of note may include: excellence/length 
of service as a volunteer; significant philanthropy; 
outstanding professional service; an exceptional 
contribution in years of service or effort; initiating a 
new and/or innovative idea; or making a contribution 
significantly above and beyond expectations of their 
role.

The purpose of the award is to recognise and honour 
people whose service and personal contributions, given 
willingly and freely, has resulted in a significant benefit to 
The Kilmore & District Hospital.

The award comprises a framed Certificate of 
Appointment, presented at the Annual General Meeting, 
usually held in the month of November.

The Kilmore & District Hospital’s Life Governors:

The Kilmore & District Hospital conferred three 
new Life Governor Awards at the Annual General 
Meeting held in November 2017.

John Dixon

John joined The Kilmore & District 
Hospital Board back in 1994. Over the 
24 years he’s been appointed Board 
President and Vice President, plus 
Chair of the Audit Committee. 

His service on Project Management 
Groups has been extremely valuable to the hospital’s 
modernisation and expansion.  The building projects, 
including Caladenia Nursing Home and Dianella Village 
Hostel and hospital extensions and redevelopments, 
have a combined value of well over $30M. Under John’s 
stewardship they’ve come in on time and on budget. 

John continues to contribute to the improvements of 
facilities for our community and has supported the 
Caladenia Nursing Home Significant Refurbishment 
project.

Elizabeth (Liz) Dillon-Hensby

After growing up in Geelong Liz 
started her career in 1969 at the Royal 
Melbourne Hospital. From there she 
moved to Nagambie and has held 
nursing roles in Queensland. In the 80s 
she relocated to Kilmore and joined 
The Kilmore & District Hospital team. 

Liz was employed at The Kilmore & District Hospital as a 
registered nurse and midwife for over 30 years. Around 
2015 she noticed things coming full circle as she began 
to deliver the babies of babies she’d delivered.

Liz retired from official duties in May 2016. She remains 
connected through her work with the Kilmore Historical 
Society, collecting old hospital photographs and 
historical items for display.

Dr Sarwat Shenouda

Dr Shenouda was born and educated 
in Cairo, Egypt. He served for a time 
as a conscript in the Egyptian army - 
as a cook!

Upon emigration to Australia Dr 
Shenouda moved to Swan Hill, 

where as a country GP he quickly realised the need for 
obstetrics experience. His subsequent training led to a 
mentor who suggested Kilmore as a place in need of his 
skills.

Dr Shenouda found a real sense of community, settling 
here with his children who attended school locally.  He’s 
been the cornerstone of The Kilmore & District Hospital’s 
obstetric service for over 20 years and is the immediate 
past chair of our Visiting Medical Officer’s Committee.

• Mrs Pat Arnott

• Ms Nancy Bidstrup

• Mrs Kaye Chapman

• Dr Peter Condos

• Dr Walter Cosolo

• Dr Barry Dawson

• Ms Elizabeth Dillon-
Hensby

• Mr John Dixon

• Mrs Astrid Djulinac

• Mrs Marguerite Fagg

• Dr John Griffiths

• Mrs Shirley Jean 
Hillier

• Dr Denis Holland

• Dr Suresh Jain

• Mrs Denise Lee

• Mrs M Merritt

• Dr Das Panch

• Mrs Shirley Robinson

• Mr Allan Ryan

• Dr Frank Ryan

• Dr Sarwat Shenouda

• Mr Allan L Smith

• Mr Ian Bentleigh Still

• Mr Alan J. Stute

• Mrs Barbara Sutton

• Mrs Marie Walters

• Mr Michael Wilson

The Kilmore & District Hospital acknowledges the death 
of Life Governor, Mrs Joyce Chard in June 2017. Our 
deepest sympathies are extended to her family and 
many friends throughout the community. 
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Manner of Establishment and Relevant Minister 

The Kilmore & District Hospital was established in 
1854 and was incorporated under the provisions of the 
Hospitals & Charities Act on 17 November 1864.

The responsible Ministers during the reporting period were:

• The Honourable Jill Hennessy MLA, Minister for Health, 
Minister for Ambulance Services

• The Honourable Martin Foley MLA, Minister for Housing, 
Disability and Ageing, Minister for Mental Health

Powers and Duties 

The powers and duties of The Kilmore & District Hospital 
are prescribed by the Health Services Act 1988. 

Nature and Range of Services 

The agency operates from one site encompassing four 
facilities – the main hospital (housing multi-day beds, 
a perioperative suite and the Urgent Care Centre), 
Caladenia Nursing Home and Dianella Village Aged Care 
Hostel and the Outpatient Services Facility.  Services 
are provided in home and community settings, including 
antenatal clinics operated from Seymour Health and 
Nexus Primary Health in Wallan.

Hospital Based Services

The Kilmore & District Hospital provides a variety of 
health care services. Inpatient and outpatient services are 
offered to the community of Kilmore and district including 
maternity, medical, surgical, and subacute care.

As the only provider of maternity services in the Mitchell 
Shire, the hospital supports over 300 women and families 
assessed as having a normal risk pregnancy to receive 
maternity (antenatal, birthing and postnatal) care close to 
home.

Our hospital services range from acute services in the 
areas of maternity, medical and surgical services, through 
to subacute care encompassing Geriatric Evaluation and 
Management, Transition Care and Palliative Care.  The 
number and range of Visiting Specialists consulting from 
our Outpatient Facility continues to expand.

Our 24 hour Urgent Care Centre is attended by highly 
skilled and experienced nursing staff.  Staff collaborate 
with local GPs, in providing first line care to all urgent 
attendances, and with Ambulance Victoria and receiving 
hospitals to stabilise and coordinate transfer to a higher 
level of care, where necessary.

Service Overview

The Kilmore & District Hospital has provided health care services 
to our local community since it was founded in 1854. The hospital 
is accountable to the people of Victoria, through the Minister for 
Health and the Minister for Housing, Disability and Ageing.

Aged Care Services

Caladenia Nursing Home and Dianella Village Hostel 
provide a home-like atmosphere with the security of 
assistance when required.  Each facility has the capacity to 
support 30 care recipients. Respite care is also available.

Home Based Services

The District Nursing Service is funded through the 
Commonwealth Home Support Programme (CHSP). 
This service helps older people stay independent 
and in their homes and communities for longer.  We 
also receive state based funding to provide support 
to younger people with disabilities living at home and 
produce delivered meals through the Victorian Home 
and Community Care program.

Our People

The Kilmore & District Hospital recruits high quality staff 
with the right skills to deliver the key objectives of the 
position, business units and organisation.

Merit and Equity Principles

Merit and equity principles are encompassed in all 
employment and diversity management activities 
throughout our organisation. The Kilmore & District 
Hospital is an equal opportunity employer and 
is committed to providing its employees a work 
environment which is free of harassment or discrimination 
together with an environment that is safe and without risk 
to health. The Kilmore & District Hospital’s employees are 
committed to our values and behaviours as the principles 
of employment and conduct, embracing and promoting 
cultural diversity and awareness in the workplace. 

Recruiting Staff 

The Kilmore & District Hospital had a very productive year 
in continuing to grow and develop our team. At the end of 
the 2017-18 financial year we had 326 employees with 65 
new staff joining us over the year. The new staff members 
included both permanent and casual employees. 

In addition we also expanded our Visiting Medical Officer 
Group (VMO) with an additional 15 Doctors coming on 
board. The VMO craft groups include Surgical, Obstetrics 
and Gynaecology, Urology, Geriatric Medicine and General 
Practice specialities. This has seen our number of VMO’s 
increase to 64 which has had a positive impact on the 
services and care being provided to the community. 
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Pre-employment Safety Screening

The organisation has further improved the process for 
credentialling and pre-employment verification to ensure 
we sustain safety and quality of health care provision. 
Applicable clinical staff are required to hold and maintain 
current registration with the relevant National Board 
in conjunction with the Australian Health Practitioner 
Regulation Agency (AHPRA) or equivalent. Registration 
verification has been streamlined through direct access to 
the AHPRA website. This enables The Kilmore & District 
Hospital to ensure that all clinical staff hold the necessary 
registration and notifies the organisation if any clinician 
has additional notifications or restrictions to their practice.  

All staff are required to maintain a satisfactory Criminal 
Record Check and we are working towards the 
implementation of Working with Children Checks as part 
of our Child Safe Policy requirement. All new staff joining 
our organisation are required to hold a relevant Working 
with Children Check and existing staff have until the 30th 
November 2018 to hold a valid Working with Children 
Check. This is part of our commitment to provide a Child 
Safe environment. 

Employee Recognition

Our staff continue to go above and beyond to achieve 
excellence. We aim to provide a platform for meaningful 
recognition that contributes to increased staff 
engagement and positive workplace behaviours.

During 2017-18, we further developed our Reward 
and Recognition Program with the introduction of our 
Recognising Excellence Staff Awards to promote and 
highlight outstanding achievements demonstrated 
during the year.  The awards covered five categories 
each representing a governance domain: leadership and 
culture, clinical and corporate effectiveness, consumer 
partnerships, workforce and risk management. Our 
Excellence Award recipients are highlighted in feature 
insert on page 4. 

Employee Assistance Program

The Employee Assistance Program (EAP) is a 
confidential external counselling service available to staff 
and their families. The service provides assistance in 
addressing personal concerns or work related issues 
that have an impact on wellbeing and quality of life. 

There were eight staff or family members who accessed 
the service during 2017–18. The EAP is also available to 
support staff debriefing sessions that may be required 
following a clinical incident.  In 2017-18 EAP provided 
two site visits to support staff through this process. 

Developing Our Workforce 

The Kilmore & District Hospital’s education program 
develops the capacity, performance and capability of 
our staff. Education programs are specific for nursing, 
medical, allied health and administrative staff.

The mandatory training framework was developed and 
rolled out in line with the Australian Council on Health 
Care Standards. The mandatory training matrix outlines 
training requirements by role. 

The online learning system profiles individual training 
schedules of mandatory and professionally recommended 
education courses for staff to ensure they maintain the 
knowledge and skills to perform their role safely.  

Managers are required to conduct annual performance 
appraisals for their team members. This provides a formal 
framework to ensure performance discussions are held 
to review past achievements and set goals for the next 
twelve months. 

Along with this, our Managers have been working with 
our Clinical Education Coordinator to review the skill sets 
required in each department and then conducting a skills 
gap analysis. The purpose of this work is to enable us to 
target training and education opportunities to help ensure 
our staff have the appropriate skills and knowledge to 
support our community and their health care needs. 

Enterprise Bargaining Negotiations

The current certified agreements for nurses, allied health 
professionals, administrative and managerial staff include 
terms and conditions agreed for a four year period, 
provision of wage increases and the establishment of 
common clauses within agreements. New entitlements 
included: family violence leave, transition to retirement, 
and a framework on the management of occupational 
violence and aggression management. The People and 
Culture team has been working with managers and 
unions to implement and educate staff on the changes to 
entitlements.

Workforce by Labour Category

 June 2017 June 2018  
 Current Current June 2017 June 2018 
Labour Category Month FTE Month FTE YTD FTE YTD FTE

Nursing 80.31 80.47 78.42 83.39

Administration and Clerical 16.42 16.88 15.16 17.35

Medical Support 2.60 2.70 2.10 2.88

Hotel and Allied 33.14 28.40 33.72 33.88

Hospital Medical Officers 0.15 0.70 0.09 1.00

Sessional Medical Specialists 0.21 0.25 0.21 0.25

Allied Health 3.11 4.40 2.95 3.18

Total 135.97 133.80 132.65 141.43

The Kilmore & District Hospital is committed to the application of the employment and conduct principles and all employees have 
been correctly classified in workforce data collections.
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Workplace Training and Experience

In 2017-18 The Kilmore & District Hospital provided 
placement opportunities for over 120 students.  The 
majority were participating in nursing professional practice 
placements both Registered Nursing and Enrolled Nursing 
with 122 students working across our inpatient, theatre 
services, urgent care, district nursing and aged care 
services. We supported 15 overseas trained nurses to 
complete placement requirements required for application 
for AHPRA registration.  

Twenty One Vocational Education and Training students 
attended placement hours as part of their studies in 
Allied Health, Leisure and Lifestyle, Theatre Technician or 
Individual Support – Ageing.

Each year we support our local schools’ work experience 
program and six students from Assumption College 
Kilmore, Wallan Secondary College and Broadford 
Secondary College joined us for their placements.

The Kilmore & District Hospital has established 
relationships with many universities and training 
organisations including: Federation University, Victoria 
University, Charles Sturt University, Go Tafe, Swinburne 
University, Charles Darwin University, RMIT, Latrobe 
University and the University of South Australia.  Students 
may attend placement for two to eight weeks depending 
on the university or training organisation requirements and 
each placement is tailored to ensure the student achieves 
agreed upon objectives.  

We take part in annual placement planning activities by 
the Department of Health and Human Services to support 
ongoing facilitation of student placement, support and 
best practice in learning and education.

Payroll 

Payroll is managed in-house with over 6,670 pays 
during 2017–18. 

Work Health Safety

The Kilmore & District Hospital is committed to providing 
a safe environment for employees, patients, visitors, 
volunteers and contractors. We operate in accordance 
with the Victorian Occupational Health and Safety 
Act 2004, Occupational Health and Safety (OHS) 
Regulations 2007, the Workplace Injury Rehabilitation and 
Compensation Act 2013 and other relevant legislation. 

In 2017-18, staff were involved in health and safety 
decisions through meetings of the Work Health Safety 
Committee and regular consultation with health and 
safety representatives. Staff and safety representatives 
were involved in health and safety decisions through 
consultation and regular meetings.

Immediately following an incident, an investigation is 
undertaken to identify and implement remedial action. 
Quarterly preventative workplace inspections are carried 
out by management and input is encouraged by health 
and safety representatives to ensure the identification and 
control of OHS hazards. 

Work Health Safety education is provided at orientation 
and local induction and emergency response training is 
provided for emergency coordinators and area wardens. 

Our OHS training includes: bullying and harassment 
awareness and prevention training for all managers; 
occupational violence and aggression management for 
clinical and front line staff; manual handling ‘train the 
trainer’ training for clinical and support staff.

Occupational Violence

Occupational violence is any incident where an employee 
is abused, threatened or assaulted in circumstances 
arising out of, or in the course of their employment. A 
risk assessment of the internal and external environment 
by an external expert was completed in November 
2017 and an action plan developed to address the 
recommendations. The Work Health Safety Committee 
has oversight of occupational violence and aggression 
issues across the organisation and has developed a plan 
to address specific occupational violence needs and 
promote staff safety.

The Kilmore & District Hospital reports the following 
occupational violence statistics for 2017–18:

Occupational Violence Statistics 2017-18

Workcover accepted claims with an occupational  
violence cause per 100 FTE 0%

Number of accepted Workcover claims with lost 
time injury with an occupational violence cause 0 
per 1,000,000 hours worked.

Number of occupational violence  
incidents reported 32

Number of occupational violence incidents 
reported per 100 FTE 22.6

Percentage of occupational violence incidents  
resulting in a staff injury, illness or condition.                             
(Staff injury 5; denominator 32)                                    15.6%

Definitions:
For the purposes of the above statistics the following 
definitions apply:

Occupational violence: Any incident where an employee is 
abused, threatened or assaulted in circumstances arising out 
of, or in the course of their employment.

Incident: Occupational health and safety incidents reported 
in the health service incident reporting system. Code Grey 
reporting is not included.

Accepted WorkCover claims: Accepted WorkCover claims 
that were lodged in 2017-18.

Lost time: Is defined as greater than one day.

Injury, illness or condition: This includes all reported harm 
as a result of an incident, regardless of whether the employee 
required time off work or submitted a claim.

Occupational Health and Safety

The total number of WorkCover claims lodged increased 
in 2017–18 resulting in six new claims adding to the two 
pre-existing ones.

All of the staff members have successfully been 
supported back to work with four being to full pre-injury 
duties and two on alternate duties as part of their gradual 
return to work plan. 

The table below summarises the new workers’ 
compensation claims lodged over the last four years. It 
shows a comparison of total new claims costs and the 
average cost per new claim. 
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Number of 
Claims

Total cost 
of claims 

per year ($)

Average 
Claim    

Cost ($)

2014-15 1 242,081 242,081

2015-16 2 3,676 1,838

2016-17 6 47,983 7,998

2017-18 6 61,272 10,212

Legislative Compliance

Privacy

Privacy is an important part of the culture at The Kilmore 
& District Hospital. Since the Health Records Act 2001 
became legally binding in 2002, the hospital has aimed 
to ensure all staff are aware of the Act and its implications 
in the workplace. The hospital also aims to ensure 
compliance with the Privacy and Data Protection Bill 2014. 

The Kilmore & District Hospital’s Privacy Officer role is 
delegated to the Manager Health Information, Ms Justine 
Muston.

Protected Disclosures 

Under the Protected Disclosures Act 2012 (the Act), 
complaints about certain serious misconduct or 
corruption involving public health services in Victoria 
should be made directly to the Independent Broadbased 
Anti-corruption Commission (IBAC) in order to remain 
protected under the Act. The Kilmore & District Hospital 
was not required to disclose any issues under the Act in 
the 2017-18 financial year.

Carers Recognition 

The Carers Recognition Act 2012 recognises, promotes 
and values the role of carers. The Kilmore & District 
Hospital understands the different needs of carers and 
the value they provide to the community. The Kilmore & 
District Hospital takes practical measures to ensure that 
our staff have an awareness and understanding of the 
care relationship principles and this is reflected in our 
commitment to a model of patient- and family-centred 
care and to involving carers in the development and 
delivery of our services. The Kilmore & District Hospital 
was not required to make any disclosures during the 
reporting period.

Freedom of Information 

The Victorian Freedom of Information (FOI) Act 1982 
provides members of the public with the right to apply, 
in writing, to The Kilmore & District Hospital for access 
to information held by the hospital. The hospital provides 
an annual report of all FOI requests to the Victorian 
Department of Justice. 

In 2017-18 The Kilmore & District Hospital received 
42 requests for information under the Freedom of 
Information Act 1982. Of the 42 applications, 14 of which 
were from the general public, all were granted.

Safe Patient Care

The Safe Patient Care (Nurse to Patient and Midwife 
to Patient Ratios) Act 2015 aims to ensure quality care 
and better patient outcomes. The purposes of the 

Act are to provide for requirements that the operators 
of certain publicly funded health facilities staff certain 
wards with a minimum number of nurses and midwives 
and the reporting of compliance with and enforcement 
of those requirements. The Kilmore & District Hospital 
understands the nurse to patient and midwife to patient 
ratios applicable to our organisation and takes practical 
measures to ensure that our service is staffed in 
accordance with the Act. The Kilmore & District Hospital 
was not required to make any disclosures during the 
reporting period.

Building and Maintenance Compliance 

During 2017-18 The Kilmore & District Hospital’s 
buildings complied with the Building Act 1993 as evident 
in the annual certificate of compliance of essential 
services.  In order to ensure buildings are maintained in 
a safe and functional condition, ongoing maintenance 
programs are in place. 

Environmental Achievements 

The Kilmore & District Hospital is committed to reducing 
its carbon footprint and minimising the impact on 
the environment. New and ongoing energy saving 
initiatives include the establishment of a Sustainability & 
Waste Action Group to drive the implementation of our 
Environmental Strategy and the securing of an interest free 
loan to expand the capacity of our solar energy program.

Victorian Industry Participation Policy Disclosure 

The Kilmore & District Hospital complies with the 
intent of the Victorian Industry Participation Policy Act 
2003 and has no requirements of disclosures for the 
2017-18 financial year. The Act requires, wherever 
possible, local industry participation in supplies, taking 
into consideration the principle of value for money and 
transparent tendering processes. 

National Competition Policy 

In accordance with the Competition Principles Agreement 
(CPA), Victoria is obliged to apply competitive neutrality 
policy and principles to all significant business activities 
undertaken by government agencies and local authorities. 

The Kilmore & District Hospital continues to comply 
with the National Competition Policy.  The Victorian 
Government’s competitive neutrality pricing principles for 
all relevant business activities have also been applied by 
The Kilmore & District Hospital.

Compliance 

The Kilmore & District Hospital has complied substantially 
with the requirements of the Victorian Public Sector 
Financial Management Compliance Framework for the 
year ended 30 June 2018. 

Consultancies less than $10,000

In 2017-18 The Kilmore & District Hospital engaged 
one consultant where the total fees payable to the 
consultant were less than $10,000, with a total 
expenditure of $7,483 (excluding GST). 
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Consultancies more than $10,000

In 2017-18 The Kilmore & District Hospital engaged one 
consultancy where the total fees payable were in excess 
of $10,000 (excluding GST): 

Consultancy
Purpose of 
Consultancy

Total 
Expenditure ($)

Provider Assist Aged Care 
Funding 
Instrument 
Review 

30,933

Disclosure of Ex-Gratia Payments 

The Kilmore & District Hospital made no ex-gratia 
payments for the year ending 30 June 2018.

Disclosure of Information and Communication 
Technology (ICT) Expenditure

The Kilmore & District Hospital’s total entity ICT Business 
As Usual expenditure (excluding GST) for the 2017-
18 financial year was $467,267. This expenditure is 
comprised of $280,314 for operating expenses and 
$186,953 for capital expenses.

Additional Information Available on Request 
(FRD 22F Appendix) 

In compliance with the requirements of FRD 22H 
Standard Disclosures in the Report of Operations, details 
in respect of the items listed below have been retained 
by The Kilmore & District Hospital and are available to the 
relevant Ministers, Members of Parliament and the public 
on request (subject to the Freedom of Information (FOI) 
Act 1982 requirements, if applicable): 

• A statement that declarations of pecuniary interests 
have been duly completed by all relevant officers. 

• Details of shares held by senior officers as nominee or 
held beneficially in a statutory authority or subsidiary. 

• Details of publications produced by The Kilmore & 
District Hospital. 

• Details of changes in prices, fees, charges, rates and 
levies charged. 

• Details of any major external reviews carried out. 

• Details of major research and development activities 
undertaken. 

• Details of overseas visits undertaken including a 
summary of the objectives and outcomes of each visit. 

• Details of major promotional, public relations and 
marketing activities undertaken by the entity to 
develop community awareness of The Kilmore & 
District Hospital and its services. 

• Details of assessments and measures undertaken 
to improve the occupational health and safety of 
employees. 

• General statement on industrial relations within The 
Kilmore & District Hospital and details of time lost 
through industrial accidents and disputes. 

• A list of major committees sponsored by The Kilmore 
& District Hospital, the purposes of each committee 
and the extent to which those purposes have been 
achieved. 

• Details of all consultancies and contractors including 
consultants/contractors engaged, services provided, 
and expenditure committed for each engagement.
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Key Financial and Service Performance Reporting

Service Performance at a Glance
Admitted 2017-18 2016-17 2015-16 2014-15 2013-14

Acute

Number of Inpatients treated incl. same day 2,852 2,443 2,451 1,786 2,333

Beddays 5,890 4,937 5,037 4,316 5,385

Average Length of Stay 2.07 2.02 2.06 2.42 2.30

Geriatric Evaluation and Management (GEM)

Number of Separations(i) 156 178 147  - -

Beddays(i) 3,294 3,290 2,722  - -

Average Length of Stay(i) 21.12 18.48 18.70 - -

Operating Theatre     

Number of Operations 2,007 1,508 1,509 787 1,298

Number of Contract Operations(ii) 660 315 255 129 131

Maternity     

Births 258 247 292 199 228

Non-Admitted     

Outpatient Attendances 6,145 5,969 5,757 3,870 3,341

Urgent Care Centre (UCC) Attendances 9,199 8,521 8,337 8,487 8,531

Community Services     

District Nurse Visits 5,690 4,501 4,997 5,244 6,082

Meals on Wheels 10,589 9,022 7,786 9,059 11,370

Aged Care     

Nursing Home     

Beddays 9,927 8,858 8,495 8,455 9,123

Occupancy 90.66 80.89 77.37 77.20 83.32

Residents Accommodated 38 40 37 39 53

Average Length of Stay 660 709 - - -

Hostel     

Beddays 10,719 10,614 10,337 10,175 9,985

Occupancy 97.89 96.93 94.14 92.93 91.19

Residents Accommodated 52 61 60 88 96

Average Length of Stay 731 618 - - -

Admitted patient data is to be sourced from the Victorian Admitted Episode Dataset (VAED), and definitions are in 
accordance with the standards in the VAED Manual. 

Non-admitted data is in accordance with the definitions in the Agency Information Management System (AIMS) manual.

(i) Service undertaken in partnership with Northern Health
(ii) Service contracted with Northern Health & Austin Health (subset of the total number of operations)
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Statement of Priorities

Part A: Strategic Priorities
Priority Action Deliverables Outcomes

Better Health

A system geared 
to prevention as 
much as treatment

Everyone 
understands their 
own health and 
risks

Illness is detected 
and managed early

Healthy 
neighbourhoods 
and communities 
encourage healthy 
lifestyles 

Reduce statewide risks

Build healthy 
neighbourhoods

Help people to stay 
healthy

Target health gaps

Reduce the level of continuing risk for 
victims of family violence through the 
implementation of the Strengthening 
Hospital Response to Family Violence 
(SHRFV) initiative

With support from Northern Health 
we will: 

• Implement a whole-of-hospital 
service model to respond to family 
violence

• Implement a train-the-trainer model 
to deliver staff education 

• Report our progress; and 

• Prepare to meet the requirements 
of future information sharing 
legislation and the revised Common 
Risk Assessment Framework

Achieved and ongoing
SHRFV Action Group convened and 
Terms of Reference ratified

Project Officer appointed in 
partnership with Northern Health

Project plan developed and 
endorsed

Board of Directors and Senior 
Leadership Team engaged in 
awareness raising education

Go To resource people identified 
and participated in train-the-trainer 
development program

Improve the way we manage our 
energy, materials and waste for 
a sustainable and thriving future. 
We will achieve this through the 
implementation of our Environmental 
Strategy and in 2017-18 will: 

• Improve Environmental 
Sustainability leadership and 
culture across all The Kilmore & 
District Hospital facilities

• Reduce waste by 1% per annum 
and increase percentage of waste 
recycled by 1% per annum and

• Reduce energy consumption by 
1% per annum

Commenced and ongoing
The Sustainability & Waste Action 
Group convened and Terms of 
Reference ratified

Baseline measures established 
to support effective monitoring of 
energy consumption

Solar energy project proposal to 
expand capacity successful and 
interest free loan secured.

Recycling program maintained

Support the reduction in the burden 
of preventable cancer through the 
establishment of a Bowel Cancer 
Screening Program.  We will achieve 
this by: 

• Raising awareness through an 
active health promotion campaign

• Engaging with local General 
Practices to increase screening 
rates through a call to action 
communication strategy; and

• Establishing a Direct Access 
Colonoscopy Clinic for people 
in our community with a positive 
Faecal Occult Blood Test

Commenced and ongoing
Consultation with local General 
Practitioners undertaken with 3 
practices engaged during the year

Data capture and reporting 
requirements reviewed with 
mechanisms developed to support 
implementation

Review of model of care 
commenced

Build a healthy, equitable and 
thriving community by supporting 
families to provide the best start in 
life for their babies 

Together with our partner agencies 
we will continue to develop our 
Women’s and Newborn Service 
including the establishment of an 
Early Parenting Service

Achieved and ongoing
95% (20/21) of recommendations 
from the maternity services review 
completed and reported to the 
Clinical Governance Committee

Memorandum of Understanding 
(MOU) with FamilyCare finalised and 
signed by both agencies in January 
2018. In partnership with FamilyCare 
the Day Stay program commenced 
delivery from The Kilmore & District 
Hospital site in February 2018
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Priority Action Deliverables Outcomes

Better Access

Care is always 
there when people 
need it

More access to 
care in the home 
and community

People are 
connected to the 
full range of care 
and support they 
need

There is equal 
access to care

Plan and invest

Unlock innovation

Provide easier access

Ensure fair access

Improve access to high quality 
supportive care services for people 
with cancer and their carers 
encompassing self-help and 
support, information, psychological 
support, symptom control, social 
support, spiritual needs, palliative 
care and bereavement care

Significantly progressed
Supportive care program developed 
in partnership with Hume Regional 
Integrated Cancer Service and the 
Cancer Council and implemented in 
February 2018

Model of care and business case 
developed in partnership with 
Austin Health for the establishment 
of a medical oncology satellite 
service

Establish a No Wrong Door 
philosophy across The Kilmore 
& District Hospital so that our 
community is supported to access 
the care they need by: 

• Reviewing our Safe Practice 
Guidelines

• Implementing formal Transfer 
of Care protocols for all clinical 
streams; and 

• Developing integrated and 
coordinated admission processes

Significantly progressed
Review of Safe Practice Guidelines 
undertaken with the Maternity and 
Newborn guideline completed

Transfer of care protocol developed 
for the maternity service and 
implemented

Model of care for pre-admission 
clinic developed and implemented

Increase access for our community 
to specialist medical assessment 
through the implementation of 
telemedicine initiatives including: 
The Royal Victorian Eye and Ear 
Hospital eyeConnect device and a 
fetal monitoring system

Achieved and ongoing
eyeConnect service implemented 
with 12 packages sent electronically 
and 1 patient transferred. All other 
presentations received local care, 
which totalled a saving of: 

26.4 hours in travel time

1628km

Saving $1074.48 across all patients

Maternity equipment identified 
through the gap analysis sourced 
and purchased

Associated procedures, protocols 
and education strategy developed 
and implemented

Actively promote inclusion, equality, 
diversity and health literacy in all 
aspects of the role of The Kilmore & 
District Hospital as an employer and 
service provider

Achieved and ongoing
Completion and endorsement of 
the ‘Koolin Balit Aboriginal Health 
Cultural Competence Action Plan 
2017–2020

‘Pledge to Stop Mental Illness 
Stigma and Discrimination’ signed 
and staff information session 
undertaken

Develop, implement, evaluate 
and review The Kilmore & District 
Hospital Diversity, Inclusion and 
Health Literacy Plan in accordance 
with National Quality and Safety 
Standards, relevant legislative 
obligations, and Departmental policy 
requirements

Achieved and ongoing
Co-Design Workshops conducted 
with the Community Advisory 
Committee

Health Literacy education provided 
for staff

Advice on writing health literate 
consumer information developed
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Priority Action Deliverables Outcomes

Better Care

Target zero 
avoidable harm

Healthcare that 
focusses on 
outcomes

Patients and 
carers are active 
partners in care

Care fits together 
around people’s 
needs

Put quality first

Join up care

Partner with patients

Strengthen the 
workforce

Embed evidence

Ensure equal care

Prevent and manage occupational 
violence and aggression (OVA) 
and reduce the percentage of 
associated incidents resulting in 
a staff injury, illness or condition 
through the implementation of the 
Victorian Government Framework

Reduce the incidence of bullying 
and harassment at The Kilmore & 
District Hospital to less than 15% 
through the introduction of a zero 
tolerance campaign

Significantly progressed
OVA risk assessment of internal and 
external environment by external 
expert completed in November 
2017

Action plan developed and 
implementation requirements 
prioritised and costed.

3.5 hour intensive de-escalation 
training for staff undertaken with 34 
(15%) permanent staff participating

Incidence of bullying and 
harassment reduced from 23% in 
2016-17 to 9% in 2017-18

Mandatory actions 
against the ‘Target 
zero avoidable 
harm’ goal

Develop and implement 
a plan to educate staff 
about obligations to 
report patient safety 
concerns.

Further improve the patient safety 
culture by embedding the Know 
How We Are Going initiative across 
The Kilmore and District Hospital

 

Achieved and ongoing 
10 minute education session 
including take-away information 
using examples/stories developed 
and implemented

210 staff (68%) trained

Establish agreements 
to involve with external 
specialists in clinical 
governance processes 
for each major area 
of activity (including 
mortality and morbidity 
review).

Agreements with external specialists 
in clinical governance processes 
established and formalised for 
maternity, perioperative and medical 
services

Achieved and ongoing
Partnership Governance Committee 
convened and Terms of Reference 
ratified with two meetings held in 
2017-18

Memorandum of Understanding 
finalised

Reciprocal credentialling agreed 
to in principal with protocol to be 
finalised

In partnership with 
consumers, identify 3 
priority improvement 
areas using Victorian 
Healthcare Experience 
Survey (VHES) data 
and establish an 
improvement plan for 
each. These should 
be reviewed every 6 
months to reflect new 
areas for improvement in 
patient experience.

In partnership with The Kilmore 
and District Hospital consumer 
consultants we will: 

• Improve how we communicate 
with our patients

• Actively engage patients and 
families in bedside handover; and 

• Develop staff to provide more 
emotional support to our patients

Achieved and ongoing
Working group, including 
consumers, established

Three areas for improvement 
identified from VHES data and 
Improvement plan for each area 
developed

Survey of patient experience 
undertaken in inpatient ward in 
November 2017 and April 2018.  
Results communicated to staff and 
through consumer notice boards

Quality and Safety Education Plan 
reviewed to include staff obligation 
to report
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Part B: Performance Priorities
High quality and safe care 

Key performance indicator Target 2017-18 Result

Accreditation

Accreditation against the National Safety and Quality Health Service Standards Full compliance Achieved

Compliance with Commonwealth’s Aged Care Accreditation Standards Full compliance Achieved

Infection prevention and control

Compliance with cleaning standards Full compliance Full compliance

Compliance with Hand Hygiene Australia program 80% 90.7%

Percentage of healthcare workers immunised for influenza 75% 78%

Patient Experience and Outcomes

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey – data submission Full compliance Achieved

Percentage of positive patient experience responses – Quarter 1 95% positive experience 96.5%

Percentage of positive patient experience responses – Quarter 2 95% positive experience 98%

Percentage of positive patient experience responses – Quarter 3 95% positive experience 96.5%

Percentage of very positive responses to questions on discharge care – Quarter 1 75% very positive response 84%

Percentage of very positive responses to questions on discharge care – Quarter 2 75% very positive response 90%

Percentage of very positive responses to questions on discharge care – Quarter 3 75% very positive response 86%

Patients perception of cleanliness - Quarter 1 70% 92.9%

Patients perception of cleanliness - Quarter 2 70% 96.8%

Patients perception of cleanliness - Quarter 3 70% 93.6%

Adverse Events 

Number of sentinel events Nil 1

Mortality – number of deaths in low mortality DRGs1 Nil N/A(i)

Maternity and newborn

Rate of singleton term infants without birth anomalies with Apgar score <7 to 5 
minutes ≤ 1.6% 2.72%

Rate of severe foetal growth restriction (FGR) in singleton pregnancy undelivered 
by 40 weeks ≤ 28.6% 0

Organisational culture

People Matter Survey

Percentage of staff with a positive response to safety culture questions 80% 91%

Percentage of staff with a positive response to the question, “I am encouraged 
by my colleagues to report any patient safety concerns I may have” 80% 94%

Percentage of staff with a positive response to the question, “Patient care errors 
are handled appropriately in my work area” 80% 93%
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Key performance indicator Target 2017-18 Result

Percentage of staff with a positive response to the question, “My suggestions 
about patient safety would be acted upon if I expressed them to my manager” 80% 89%

Percentage of staff with a positive response to the question, “The culture in my 
work area makes it easy to learn from the errors of others” 80% 90%

Percentage of staff with a positive response to the question, “Management is 
driving us to be a safety-centred organisation” 80% 93%

Percentage of staff with a positive response to the question, “This health service 
does a good job of training new and existing staff 80% 88%

Percentage of staff with a positive response to the question, “Trainees in my 
discipline are adequately supervised” 80% 91%

Percentage of staff with a positive response to the question, “I would 
recommend a friend or relative to be treated as a patient here” 80% 94%

(i) This indicator was withdrawn during 2017-18 and is currently under review by the Victorian Agency for Health Information

Key performance indicator Target 2017-18 Result

Effective financial management

Finance

Operating result ($M) 0.038 -0.122

Average number of days to paying trade creditors < 60 days 79

Average number of days to receiving patient fee debtors < 60 days 38

Adjusted current asset ratio 0.7 0.83

Days of available cash 14.0 25.0

Part C: Activity and Funding

Funding type Activity
2016-17 Activity 

Achievement Budget ($’000)

Small Rural Acute 20 1,510 12,134

Small Rural Primary Health 0 0 0

Small Rural Residential Care 20,973 20,633 985

Small Rural HACC 473 436 45

Health Workforce 5 5 126

Other specified funding - - 698

Total funding 13,988
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Part D: Commonwealth Funding Contribution

The Victorian health system has faced a number of changes to Commonwealth funding since 2012-13. The 
changes to the funding arrangements announced in the 2014–15 Commonwealth Budget will continue to be 
applicable for the period 1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018 with funding continued to be linked to actual activity levels.

The Commonwealth funding contribution outlined the 2017-18 Commonwealth Budget was based on estimates 
and has since been updated by the Administrator of the National Health Funding Pool, based on latest activity 
estimates from States and Territories. However, given that final funding amounts are based on actual activity, there 
may be adjustments to funding throughout the year as a result of reconciliations and other factors outlined below.

Period: 1 July 2017 – 30 June 2018

Funding type Service Category

Estimated National 
Weighted Activity 

Units (NWAU17) Total Funding ($)

Activity Based Funding Acute admitted services - -

Admitted mental health services -

Admitted subacute services -

Emergency services -

Non-admitted services -

Block Funding Non-admitted mental health services - -

Teaching, training and research -

Other non-admitted services -

Other Funding - 13,987,854

Total Funding 13,987,854
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Financial Overview

For the year ended 30 June 2018 compared with the last five financial years  

Revenue Indicators as at 30 June 2018 

Outstanding Debtors as at 30 June 2018

Significant Changes in Financial Position During 2017–18 

There was a significant change in financial position during 2017–18. A budget surplus of $38,000 was forecast at the 
beginning of the year however the end result was a deficit of $122,000.

Summary of Major Changes or Factors which have Affected the Achievement of Operational Objectives 
for the Year 

The major factors which have affected the achievement of operational objectives for the year included the rate of 
personal leave incurred, increase utilisation of agency staff, reduction in residential aged care revenue from the 
Commonwealth due to the changes to the Aged Care Funding Instrument (ACFI) and the suboptimal assessment of 
the ACFI for care recipients; and unforeseen costs associated with urgent onsite security presence.

Events Subsequent to Balance Date, which may have a Significant Effect on the Operations of the Entity 
in Subsequent Years 

There have been no significant events subsequent to balance date affecting the operations of the hospital.

Prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards which include A-IFRS 

2017-18 
$’000

2016-17 
$’000

2015-16 
$’000

2014-15 
$’000

2013-14 
$’000

Total Revenue 22,673 19,262 18,046 16,555 16,363

Total Expenses 22,795 19,682 17,938 16,617 17,289

Net Result for the Year (122) (420) 108 (62) (926)

Retained Surplus / (Accumulated Deficit) 9,484 11,692 14,276 16,271 7,721

Total Assets 36,918 39,234 39,844 41,732 31,919

Total Liabilities 9,888 9,996 8,147 8,040 6,779

Net Assets 27,030 29,238 31,697 33,692 25,141

Total Equity 27,030 29,238 31,697 33,692 25,141

Average Collection Days 2017-18 2016-17

Private Inpatient Fees 49.6 52.1

District Nursing Services 58.3 62.6

Average Collection Days
Under 30 
Days ($)

30-60      
Days ($)

61-90     
Days ($)

Over 90  
Days ($)

Total June 
2018 ($)

Total June 
2017 ($)

Hospital - Inpatient Fees 54,812 11,311 500 15,996 82,619 48,618

District Nursing Fees 39,090 39,090 29,640

Residential Aged Care 62,586 62,586 11,940

Total 156,488 11,311 500 15,996 184,295 90,198
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Data Integrity 

I, Sue Race, certify that The Kilmore & District Hospital has put it place appropriate internal controls and processes 
to ensure that reported data accurately reflects actual performance. The Kilmore & District Hospital has critically 
reviewed these controls and processes during the year. 

   Sue Race

   Accountable Officer 
   The Kilmore & District Hospital 
   24 August 2018

Conflict of Interest 

I, Sue Race, certify that The Kilmore & District Hospital has put in place appropriate internal controls and processes to 
ensure that it has complied with the requirements of hospital circular 07/2017 Compliance reporting in health portfolio 
entities (Revised) and has implemented a ‘Conflict of Interest’ policy consistent with the minimum accountabilities required 
by the VPSC. Declaration of private interest forms have been completed by all executive staff within The Kilmore & District 
Hospital and members of the board, and all declared conflicts have been addressed and are being managed. Conflict of 
interest is a standard agenda item for declaration and documenting at each executive board meeting. 

   Sue Race

   Accountable Officer 
   The Kilmore & District Hospital 
   24 August 2018

Compliance with Health Purchasing Victoria (HPV) Health Purchasing Policies

I, Sue Race, certify that The Kilmore & District Hospital has put in place appropriate internal controls and processes 
to ensure that it has complied with all the requirements set out in the HPV Health Purchasing Policies including 
mandatory HPV collective agreements as required by the Health Services Act 1988 (Vic) and has critically reviewed 
these controls and processes during the year. 

   Sue Race

   Accountable Officer 
   The Kilmore & District Hospital 
   24 August 2018

Financial Management Compliance attestation

I Julia McGill, on behalf of the Responsible Body, certify that The Kilmore & District Hospital has complied with the 
applicable Standing Directions of the Minister for Finance under the Financial Management Act 1994 and Instructions.

   Julia McGill

   Chair elect, Board of Directors

   The Kilmore & District Hospital

   24 August 2018

Responsible Bodies Declaration

In accordance with the Financial Management Act 1994, I am pleased to present the Report of Operations for The 
Kilmore & District Hospital for the year ending 30 June 2018.

   Julia McGill

   Chair elect, Board of Directors

   The Kilmore & District Hospital

   24 August 2018

Attestations
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The Annual Report of The Kilmore & District Hospital is prepared in accordance with all relevant Victorian legislations 
and pronouncements. This index has been prepared to facilitate identification of the department’s compliance with 
statutory disclosure requirements.

Ministerial Directions

Charter and purpose

FRD 22H Manner of establishment and the relevant Ministers 12

FRD 22H Purpose, functions, powers and duties  12

FRD 22H Initiatives and key achievements  2

FRD 22H Nature and range of services provided  12

Management and structure

FRD 22H Organisational structure  9

Financial and other information

FRD 10A Disclosure index 26

FRD 11A Disclosure of ex gratia payments 16

FRD 21C Responsible person and executive officer disclosures 71

FRD 22H Application and operation of Protected Disclosure Act 2012  15

FRD 22H Application and operation of Carers Recognition Act 2012 15

FRD 22H Application and operation of Freedom of Information Act 1982  15

FRD 22H Compliance with building and maintenance provisions of Building Act 1993 15

FRD 22H Details of consultancies over $10,000  16

FRD 22H Details of consultancies under $10,000  15

FRD 22H Employment and conduct principles 13

FRD 22H Information and Communication Technology expenditure 16

FRD 22H Major changes or factors affecting performance  24

FRD 22H Occupational violence 14

FRD 22H Operational and budgetary objectives and performance against objectives 21

FRD 22H Summary of The Kilmore & District Hospital’s environmental performance  15

FRD 22H Significant changes in financial position during the year  24

FRD 22H Statement on National Competition Policy  15

FRD 22H Subsequent events 24

FRD 22H Summary of the financial results for the year  24

FRD 22H Additional information available on request 16

FRD 22H Workforce Data Disclosures including a statement on the application of employment and conduct principles 13

FRD 103F Non-Financial Physical Assets 48

FRD 110A Cash flow Statements 36

FRD 112D Defined Benefit Superannuation Obligations 46

SD 5.2.3 Declaration in report of operations 25

Legislation Requirement                                                                                                                                 Page Reference

Disclosure Index
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Legislation Requirement Page Reference

Other requirements under Standing Directions 5.2

SD 5.2 Declaration in financial statements  29

SD 5.2.1(a) Compliance with Australian accounting standards and other authoritative pronouncements  38

SD 5.2.1(a) Compliance with Ministerial Directions  38

Legislation 

Freedom of Information Act 1982 15

Building Act 1993 15

Financial Management Act 1994 25

Health Records Act 2001 15

Victorian Industry Participation Policy Act 2003 15

Victorian Occupational Health and Safety Act 2004 14

Protected Disclosure Act 2012 15

Workplace Injury Rehabilitation and Compensation Act 2013 14

Carers Recognition Act 2012 15

Privacy and Data Protection Bill 2014 15

Safe Patient Care Act 2015 15
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Board member’s, accountable officer’s and 
chief finance and account officer’s declaration 

The attached financial statements for The Kilmore & District Hospital have been prepared in accordance 
with Directions 5.2 of the Standing Directions of the Minister for Finance under the Financial Management 
Act 1994, applicable Financial Reporting Directions, Australian Accounting Standards including 
Interpretations, and other mandatory professional reporting requirements.

We further state that, in our opinion, the information set out in the comprehensive operating statement, 
balance sheet, statement of changes in equity, cash flow statement and accompanying notes, presents 
fairly the financial transactions during the year ended 30 June 2018 and financial position of The Kilmore 
& District Hospital as at 30 June 2018.

At the time of signing, we are not aware of any circumstance which would render any particulars included 
in the financial statements to be misleading or inaccurate.

We authorise the attached financial report for issue 24 August 2018. 

Ms Julia McGill
Board Chair

Kilmore 
24 August 2018

Mrs. S. Race
Chief Executive Officer

Kilmore 
24 August 2018

Mr. C. Clark
Chief Finance and 
Accounting Officer

Kilmore 
24 August 2018
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Financial Statements



33THE KILMORE & DISTRICT HOSPITAL
ANNUAL REPORT 2017-2018

 Note

Total 
 

2018 
$’000

Total 
 

2017 
$’000

Revenue from Operating Activities 2.1 22,673 19,262

Employee Expenses 3.1  (15,170)  (13,357)

Non Salary Labour Costs 3.1  (3,535)  (2,449)

Supplies and Consumables 3.1  (1,751)  (1,598)

Other Expenses 3.1  (2,339)  (2,278)

Net Result Before Capital & Specific Items  (122)  (420)

Capital Purpose Income 2.1 1,048 1,055

Expenditure using Capital Purpose Income 3.1  -  (6)

Depreciation and Amortisation 4.3  (3,135)  (3,214)

  (2,087)  (2,165)

NET RESULT AFTER CAPITAL SPECIFIC ITEMS  (2,209)  (2,585)

Other economic flows included in net result

Net gain/(loss) on non-financial assets 7.2  -  (23)

Revaluation of Long Service Leave  1  24 

Other economic flows included in net result  1  1 

COMPREHENSIVE RESULT  (2,208)  (2,584)

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Comprehensive Operating Statement
For the financial year ended 30 June 2018
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 Note

Total 
 

2018 
$’000

Total 
 

2017 
$’000

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 6.2  1,567  1,183 

Receivables 5.1  1,727  826 

Investments and Other Financial Assets 4.1  4,269  5,630 

Inventories 5.2  176  114 

Prepayments and Other Assets 5.4  60  12 

Total Current Assets  7,799  7,765 

Non-Current Assets   

Receivables 5.1  575  380 

Property, Plant & Equipment 4.2  28,523  31,019 

Intangible Assets 4.4  21  70 

Total Non-Current Assets  29,119  31,469 

TOTAL ASSETS  36,918  39,234 

Current Liabilities

Payables 5.5  1,989  1,258 

Borrowings 6.1  18  29 

Provisions 3.4  3,542  3,060 

Other Current Liabilities 5.3  3,863  5,228 

Total Current Liabilities  9,412  9,575 

Non-Current Liabilities

Borrowings 6.1  19  32 

Provisions 3.4  457  389 

Total Non-Current Liabilities  476  421 

TOTAL LIABILITIES  9,888  9,996 

NET ASSETS  27,030  29,238 

EQUITY

Property, Plant and Equipment Revaluation Surplus 8.1a  17,546  17,546 

Contributed Capital 8.1b  11,532  11,532 

Accumulated Surpluses/(Deficits) 8.1c  (2,048)  160 

TOTAL EQUITY 8.1c  27,030  29,238 

Contingent Assets and Contingent Liabilities 7.2

Commitments 6.3

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Balance Sheet
For the financial year ended 30 June 2018
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Total Note 

Property, 
Plant & 

Equipment 
Revaluation 

Surplus
$’000

Contributions 
by Owners

$’000

Accumulated 
Surpluses/ 

(Deficits)
$’000

Total
$’000

Balance at 1 July 2016 17,421 11,532 2,744 31,697 

Net result for the year  -  - (2,584) (2,584)

Other comprehensive income for the year 125  -  - 125 

Capital appropriation received from 
Victorian Government  -  -  -  - 

Balance at 30 June 2017 17,546 11,532 160 29,238 

Net result for the year  -  - (2,208) (2,208)

Other comprehensive income for the year  -  -  -  - 

Capital appropriation received from 
Victorian Government  -  -  -  - 

Balance at 30 June 2018 17,546 11,532 (2,048) 27,030 

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the financial year ended 30 June 2018
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 Note

Total 
2018 
$’000

Total 
2017 
$’000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating Grants from Government  14,407  12,965 

Capital Grants from Government  624  482 

Patient and Resident Fees Received  4,329  4,167 

GST Received from/(paid to) ATO  403  358 

Recoupment from Private Practice for use of Hospital Facilities  49  43 

Other Capital Receipts  192  229 

Other Receipts  3,296  3,431 

Total Receipts  23,300  21,675 

Employee Expenses Paid  (14,968)  (13,143)

Fee for Service Medical Officers  (3,230)  (2,544)

Payment for Supplies & Consumables  (4,155)  (3,930)

Other Payments  (1,365)  - 

Total Payments  (23,718)  (19,617)

NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 8.2  (418)  2,058 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Investments  -  (1,078)

Disposal of Investments  1,360  (56)

Purchase of Non-Financial Assets  (636)  (664)

Proceeds from Sale of Non-Financial Assets  -  52 

NET CASH FLOW USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES  724  (1,746)

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HELD  306  312 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF FINANCIAL YEAR  1,024  712 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF FINANCIAL YEAR 6.2  1,330  1,024 

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Cash Flow Statement
For the financial year ended 30 June 2018
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The financial statements are prepared in accordance 
with Australian Accounting Standards and relevant 
FRDs. 

These financial statements are in Australian dollars and 
the historical cost convention is used unless a different 
measurement basis is specifically disclosed in the note 
associated with the item measured on a different basis. 

The accrual basis of accounting has been applied in 
the preparation of these financial statements whereby 
assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses are 
recognised in the reporting period to which they relate, 
regardless of when cash is received or paid. 

Consistent with the requirements of AASB 1004 
Contributions (that is contributed capital and its 
repayment) are treated as equity transactions and, 
therefore, do not form part of the income and expenses 
of the hospital. 

Additions to net assets which have been designated as 
contributions by owners are recognised as contributed 
capital. Other transfers that are in the nature of 
contributions to or distributions by owners have also 
been designated as contributions by owners. 

Transfers of net assets arising from administrative 
restructurings are treated as distributions to or 

contribution by owners. Transfer of net liabilities arising 
from administrative restructurings are treated as 
distribution to owners. 

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the 
period in which the estimate is revised and also future 
periods that are affected by the revision. Judgements 
and assumptions made by management in applying 
the application of AASB that have significant effect on 
the financial statements and estimates are disclosed in 
the notes under the heading: ‘Significant judgement or 
estimates’.

Basis of Presentation
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The Kilmore & District Hospital
Notes to the Financial Statements

30 June 2018

These annual financial statements represent the audited 
general purpose financial statements for The Kilmore 
& District Hospital for the year ended 30 June 2018. 
The report provides users with information about the 
Hospital’s stewardship of resources entrusted to it.

(a) Statement of Compliance

These financial statements are general purpose financial 
statements which have been prepared in accordance 
with the Financial Management Act 1994 and applicable 
AASBs, which include interpretations issued by the 
Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB). They are 
presented in a manner consistent with the requirements 
of AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements.

The financial statements also comply with relevant Financial 
Reporting Directions (FRDs) issued by the Department of 
Treasury and Finance, and relevant Standing Directions 
(SDs) authorised by the Minister for Finance.

The Hospital is a not-for profit entity and therefore applies 
the additional Aus paragraphs applicable to “not-for-
profit” Hospitals under the AASBs.

The annual financial statements were authorised for issue 
by the Board of The Kilmore & District Hospital on 24 
August 2018.

(b) Reporting Entity 

The financial statements include all the controlled 
activities of The Kilmore & District Hospital. 

Its principal address is: 

Rutledge St. 

Kilmore, Victoria 3764.

A description of the nature of The Kilmore & District 
Hospital’s operations and its principal activities is included 
in the report of operations, which does not form part of 
these financial statements.

(c) Basis of Accounting Preparation and 
Measurement

Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner 
which ensures that the resulting financial information 
satisfies the concepts of relevance and reliability, 
thereby ensuring that the substance of the underlying 
transactions or other events is reported.

The accounting policies have been applied in preparing 
the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2018, 
and the comparative information presented in these 
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2017.

The financial statements are presented on a going 
concern basis (refer to Note 8.10 Financial Dependency).

These financial statements are presented in Australian 
dollars, the functional and presentation currency of the 
Hospital. All amounts shown in the financial statements 
have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars. 
Minor discrepancies in tables between totals and sum of 
components are due to rounding.

The Hospital operates on a fund accounting basis and 
maintains three funds: Operating, Specific Purpose and 
Capital Funds.

The financial statements, except for cash flow 
information, have been prepared using the accrual 
basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis, items 
are recognised as assets, liabilities, equity, income 
or expenses when they satisfy the definitions and 
recognition criteria for those items, that is they are 
recognised in the reporting period to which they relate, 
regardless of when cash is received or paid.

Judgments, estimates and assumptions are required to 
be made about the carrying values of assets and liabilities 
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The 
estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed 
on an ongoing basis. The estimates and associated 
assumptions are based on professional judgements 
derived from historical experience and various other 
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the 
period in which the estimate is revised and also in future 
periods that are affected by the revision. Judgements and 
assumptions made by management in the application 
of AASBs that have significant effects on the financial 
statements and estimates relate to:

• The fair value of land, buildings and plantand equipment 
(refer note 4.2 Property, Plant and Equipment);

• Superannuation expense (refer to note 3.5 Superannuation);

• Employee benefit provisions are based on likely tenure 
of existing of existing staff, patterns of leave claims, 
future salary movements and future discount rates (refer 
to note 3.4 Employee Benefits in the Balance Sheet);

• Managed investment funds classified at level 2 of the fair 
value hierarchy (refer to note 7.1(f) Financial Instruments).

Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Income, expenses and assets are recognised net of 
amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is 
not recoverable from the Australian Tax Office (ATO). In 
this case the GST payable is recognised as part of the 
cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the 
amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the 
ATO is included with other receivables or payables in the 
Balance Sheet.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST 
components of Cash flows arising from investing or 
financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable 
to the ATO, are presented as operating cash flow. 

Commitments and contingent assets and liabilities are 
presented on a gross basis.

(d) Principles of Consolidation

Jointly controlled assets or operations

Interests in jointly controlled assets or operations are not 
consolidated by the Kilmore & District Hospital, but are 
accounted for in accordance with the policy outlined in 
Note 8.9.

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
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Note 2: Funding Delivery of Our Services
The hospital’s overall objective is to provide quality health services that support and enhance the wellbeing of all 
Victorians.

The hospital is predominantly funded by accrual based grant funding for the provision of outputs. The Hospital 
also receives funding from the supply of outputs.

Structure

2.1 Analysis of Revenue by Source

Admitted 
Patients

2018 
$’000

EDS
2018 
$’000

RAC 
2018 
$’000 

Aged 
Care
2018 
$’000

Other
2018 
$’000

Total
2018 
$’000

Government Grants 11,757 1,491 985 260  - 14,493

Indirect contributions by Department                
of Health and Human Services  7  -  6  -  -  13 

Patient and Resident Fees  372  - 3,971  88  - 4,431

Commercial Activities  -  -  -  -  414 414

Contracted Throughput - Northern Hospital & 
Austin Hospital  2,684  -  -  -  - 2,684

Other Revenue from Operating Activities  -  638  -  -  -  638 

Total Revenue from Operating Activities 14,820 2,129 4,962 348 414 22,673

Capital Purpose Income (excluding Interest)  -  -  -  -  1,032  1,032 

Capital Interest 8  - 8  -  -  16 

Total Capital Purpose Income 8  - 8  - 1,032 1,048

Total Revenue 14,828 2,129 4,970 348 1,446 23,721

Admitted 
Patients

2017 
$’000

EDS
2017 
$’000

RAC 
2017 
$’000 

Aged 
Care
2017 
$’000

Other
2017 
$’000

Total
2017 
$’000

Government Grant 10,210 1,444 970 256  - 12,880

Indirect contributions by Department of Health 
and Human Services  7  -  6  -  -  13 

Patient and Resident Fees  440  - 3,659  81  - 4,180

Commercial Activities  -  -  -  -  346 346

Contracted Throughput - Northern Hospital & 
Austin Hospital  1,843  -  -  -  - 1,843

Other Revenue from Operating Activities  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Total Revenue from Operating Activities 12,500 1,444 4,635 337 346 19,262

Capital Purpose Income (excluding Interest)  -  -  -  -  1,008 1008

Capital Interest 12  - 12  -  - 24

Total Capital Purpose Income 12  - 12  - 1,008 1,032

Total Revenue 12,512 1,444 4,647 337 1,354 20,294

Note 2.1: Analysis of Revenue by Source
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Revenue Recognition

Income is recognised in accordance with AASB 118 
Revenue and is recognised as to the extent that it 
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to 
the Kilmore & District Hospital and the income can 
be reliably measured at fair value. Unearned income 
at reporting date is reported as income received in 
advance.

Amounts disclosed as revenue are where applicable, net 
of returns, allowances and duties and taxes.

Government Grants and other transfers of income 
(other than contributions by owners)

In accordance with AASB 1004 Contributions, 
government grants and other transfers of income (other 
than contributions by owners) are recognised as income 
when the Hospital gains control of the underlying assets 
irrespective of whether conditions are imposed on the 
Hospital’s use of the contributions.  

Contributions are deferred as income in advance when 
the Hospital has a present obligation to repay them and 
the present obligation can be reliably measured.

Indirect Contributions from the Department of 
Health and Human Services

• Insurance is recognised as revenue following advice 
from the Department of Health and Human Services.

• Long Service Leave (LSL) – Revenue is recognised 
upon finalisation of movements in LSL liability in line 
with the arrangements set out in the Department 
of Health and Human Services Hospital Circular 
04/2017. 

Patient Fees

Patient fees are recognised as revenue on an accrual 
basis.

Private Practice Fees

Private practice fees are recognised as revenue at the 
time invoices are raised.

Revenue from Commercial Activities

Revenue from commercial activities such as car park 
and property rental income is recognised on an accrual 
basis.

Donations and Other Bequests

Donations and bequests are recognised as revenue 
when received. If donations are for a special purpose, 

they may be appropriated to a surplus, such as the 
specific restricted purpose surplus.

Interest Revenue

Interest revenue is recognised on a time proportionate 
basis that takes in account the effective yield of the 
financial asset, which allocates interest over the relevant 
period.

Other Income

Other income includes recoveries for salaries and wages 
and external services provided.

Category Groups

The Kilmore & District Hospital has used the following 
category groups for reporting purposes for the current 
and previous financial years.

Admitted Patient Services (Admitted Patients) 
comprises all acute and subacute admitted patient 
services, where services are delivered in public 
hospitals.

Emergency Department Services (EDs) comprises 
all emergency department services.

Aged Care comprises a range of in home, specialist 
geriatric, residential care and community based 
programs and support services, such as Home and 
Community Care (HACC) that are targeted to older 
people, people with a disability, and their carers.

Residential Aged Care (RAC) comprises those 
Commonwealth-licensed residential aged care services. 
It excludes all other residential services funded under the 
mental health program, such as mental health funded 
community care units and secure extended care units.

Other Services not reported elsewhere (Other) 
comprises services not separately classified above, 
including: Public Health Services including laboratory 
testing, blood borne viruses / sexually transmitted 
infections clinical services, Kooris liaison officers, 
immunisation and screening services, drugs services 
including drug withdrawal, counselling and the needle 
and syringe program, Disability services including 
aids and equipment and flexible support packages to 
people with a disability, Community Care programs 
including sexual assault support, early parenting 
services, parenting assessment and skills development, 
and various support services.  Health and Community 
Initiatives also falls in this category group.

Note 2.1: Analysis of Revenue by Source (continued)
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Admitted 
Patients

2018 
$’000

EDS
2018 
$’000

RAC 
2018 
$’000

Aged 
Care
2018 
$’000

Other
2018 
$’000

Total
2018 
$’000

Employee Expenses  9,213  1,596  4,035  326  -  15,170 

Other Operating Expenses

     Non Salary Labour Costs  2,986  382  167  -  -  3,535 

     Supplies & Consumables  694  76  770  15  196  1,751 

     Other Expenses  2,035  18  262  22  2  2,339 

Total Expenditure from Operating Activities  14,928  2,072  5,234  363  198  22,795 

Other Non-Operating Expenses

     Expenditure for Capital Purposes  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Depreciation and Amortisation (refer Note 4.3)  -  -  -  -  3,135  3,135 

Total other expenses  -  -  -  -  3,135  3,135 

Total Expenses  14,928  2,072  5,234  363  3,333  25,930 

Admitted 
Patients

2017 
$’000

EDS
2017 
$’000

RAC 
2017 
$’000

Aged 
Care
2017 
$’000

Other
2017 
$’000

Total
2017 
$’000

Employee Expenses  6,758  1,333  4,862  333  71  13,357 

Other Operating Expenses

     Non Salary Labour Costs  2,269  71  109  -  -  2,449 

     Supplies & Consumables  1,071  16  454  10  47  1,598 

     Other Expenses  1,990  16  255  16  1  2,278 

Total Expenditure from Operating Activities  12,088  1,436  5,680  359  119  19,682 

Other Non-Operating Expenses

     Expenditure for Capital Purposes  6  6 

Depreciation and Amortisation (refer Note 4.3)  -  -  -  -  3,214  3,214 

Total other expenses  -  -  -  -  3,220  3,220 

Total Expenses  12,088  1,436  5,680  359  3,220  22,902 

Note 3.1: Analysis of Expenses by Source

Note 3: The Cost of Delivering Services
This section provides an account of the expenses incurred by the hospital in delivering services and outputs. In 
Note 2, the funds that enable the provision of services were disclosed and in this note the cost associated with 
provision of services are recorded. 

Structure

3.1 Analysis of expenses by source 

3.2 Analysis of expense and revenue by internally managed and restricted specific purpose funds

3.3 Finance costs

3.4 Employee Benefits in the Balance Sheet

3.5 Superannuation
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Note 3.1: Analysis of Expenses by Source (continued)
Expenses are recognised as they are incurred and 
reported in the financial year to which they relate.

Employee expenses

Employee expenses include:

• wages and salaries;

• fringe benefits tax;

• leave entitlements;

• termination payments;

• workcover premiums; and

• superannuation expenses 

Grants and other transfers

These include transactions such as: grants, subsidies 
and personal benefit payments made in cash to 
individuals.

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses generally represent the day-
to-day running costs incurred in normal operations and 
include:

• Supplies and consumables                           
Supplies and services costs which are recognised 
as an expense in the reporting period in which they 
are incurred. The carrying amounts of any inventories 
held for distribution are expensed when distributed.

• Fair value of assets, services and 
resources provided free of charge 
or for nominal consideration                                              
Contributions of resources provided free of charge or 
for nominal consideration are recognised at their fair 
value when the transferee obtains control over them. 

• Borrowing costs of qualifying assets                      
In accordance with the paragraphs of AASB 123 
Borrowing Costs applicable to not-for-profit public 
sector entities, the Hospital continues to recognise 
borrowing costs immediately as an expense, to 
the extent that they are directly attributable to the 
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying 
asset.

Net gain/ (loss) on non-financial assets

Net gain/ (loss) on non-financial assets and liabilities 
includes realised and unrealised gains and losses as 
follows:

• Revaluation gains/ (losses) of non-financial physical 
assets (Refer to Note 4.2 Property plant and 
equipment).

• Net gain/ (loss) on disposal of non-financial assets

Any gain or loss on the disposal of non-financial assets 
is recognised at the date of disposal.

Net gain/ (loss) on financial instruments

Net gain/ (loss) on financial instruments includes:

• realised and unrealised gains and losses from 
revaluations of financial instruments at fair value;

• impairment and reversal of impairment for financial 
instruments at amortised cost refer to Note 4.1 
Investments and other financial assets; and

• disposals of financial assets and derecognition of 
financial liabilities

Amortisation of non-produced intangible assets

Intangible non-produced assets with finite lives are 
amortised as an ‘other economic flow’ on a systematic 
basis over the asset’s useful life. Amortisation begins 
when the asset is available for use that is when it is in 
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable 
of operating in the manner intended by management.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful 
lives (and intangible assets not available for use) are 
tested annually for impairment and whenever there is an 
indication that the asset may be impaired. (Refer to Note 
4.1 Investments and other financial assets).

Other gains/ (losses) from other economic flows

Other gains/ (losses) include:

• The revaluation of the present value of the long 
service leave liability due to changes in the bond rate 
movements, inflation rate movements and the impact 
of changes in probability factors; and

• Transfer of amounts from the reserves to 
accumulated surplus or net result due to disposal or 
derecognition or reclassification.

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation 
under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Financial Guarantee

Payments that are contingent under financial guarantee 
contracts are recognised as a liability at the time the 
guarantee is issued. The liability is initially measured 
at fair value, and if there is a material increase in the 
likelihood that the guarantee may have to be exercised, 
then it is measured at the higher of the amount 
determined in accordance with AASB 137 Provisions, 
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and the 
amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation, 
where appropriate.
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Note 3.2: Analysis of Expense and Revenue by Internally 
Managed and Restricted Specific Purpose Funds

Expense Revenue

Purpose Funds

Total 
2018 
$’000

Total 
2017 
$’000 

Total 
2018 
$’000

Total 
2017 
$’000 

Catering  196  92  131  106 

Radiology  -  -  89  92 

TOTAL  196  92  220  198 

Note 3.3: Finance Costs
Total 
2018 
$’000

Total 
2017 
$’000 

Finance Charges on Finance Leases - Hume Rural Health Alliance  2  2 

Total Finance Costs  2  2 

Finance costs include:

 - Interest on bank overdrafts and short-term and long-term borrowings (Interest expense is recognised in the period in which 
it is incurred);

 - Amortisation of discounts or premiums relating to borrowings; 

 - Amortisation of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings; and 

 - Finance charges in respect of finance leases recognised in accordance with AASB 117 Leases.
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NOTE 3.4: Employee Benefits in the Balance Sheet
Total 
2018 
$’000

Total 
2017 
$’000 

Current Provisions

Employee Benefits(i)

Annual leave

– Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly within 12 months(ii) 738 721

– Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly after 12 months(iii) 539 401

Long service leave

– Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly within 12 months(ii) 200 200

– Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly after 12 months(iii) 1,409 1,210

Accrued days off

– Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly within 12 months(ii) 46 39

2,932 2,753

Provisions related to Employee Benefit On-Costs

– Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly within 12 months(ii) 137 127

– Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly after 12 months(iii) 215 180

352 307

Accrued salaries and wages 258 182

Total Current Provisions 3,542 3,242

Non Current Provisions

Employee Benefits(i) 408 347

Provisions related to Employee Benefit On-Costs 49 42

Total Non-Current Provisions 457 389

Total Provisions 3,999 3,449

(a) Employee Benefits and Related On-Costs

Current Employee Benefits and Related On-Costs

Unconditional LSL Entitlement 1,802 1,578

Annual Leave Entitlements 1,431 1,256

Accrued Wages and Salaries 258 182

Accrued Days Off 51 44

Non-Current Employee Benefits and Related On-Costs

Conditional Long Service Leave Entitlements 457 389

Total Employee Benefits and Related On-Costs 3,999 3,449

(i) Provisions for employee benefits consist of amounts for annual leave and long service leave accrued by employees, not including on-costs.
(ii) The amounts disclosed are at nominal amounts.
(iii) The amounts disclosed are discounted to present values.

(b) Movement in Provisions

Movement in Long Service Leave:

Balance at start of year 1,967 1,850

Provisions made during the year

– Revaluations  (1)  (24)

– Expense recognising Employee Service 606 407

Settlement made during the year  (313)  (266)

Balance at end of year 2,259 1,967
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NOTE 3.4: Employee Benefits in the Balance Sheet (continued)
Employee Benefit Recognition
Provision is made for benefits accruing to employees 
in respect of wafes and salaries, annual leave and long 
service leave for services rendered to the reporting 
date as an expense during the period the services are 
delivered.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Hospital has a 
present obligation, the future sacrifice of economic 
benefits is probable, and the amount of the provision can 
be measured reliably.

The amount recognised as a liability is the best estimate of 
the consideration required to settle the present obligation 
at reporting date, taking into account the risks and 
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. 

Employee Benefits
This provision arises for benefits accruing to employees 
in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and long 
service leave for services rendered to the reporting date.

Salaries and Wages, Annual Leave and 
Accrued Days Off
Liabilities for salaries and wages, annual leave and 
accrued days off are all recognised in the provision 
for employee benefits as ‘current liabilities’, because 
the hospital does not have unconditional right to defer 
settlements of these liabilities.

Depending on the expectation of the timing of 
settlement, liabilities for wages and salaries, annual leave 
and sick leave are measured at:

• Undiscounted value — if The Kilmore & District Hospital 
expects to wholly settle within 12 months; or

• Present value — if The Kilmore & District Hospital does 
not expect to wholly settle within 12 months.

Long Service Leave
The liability for long service leave (LSL) is recognised in 
the provision for employee benefits. 

Unconditional LSL is disclosed in the notes to the 
financial statements as a current liability, even where 
the hospital does not expect to settle the liability within 

12 months because it will not have unconditional right 
to defer the settlement of the entitlement should an 
employee take leave within 12 months. An unconditional 
right arises after a qualifying period.

The components of this current LSL liability are 
measured at:

• Undiscounted value – it The Kilmore & District 
Hospital expects to settle within 12 months; and

• Present value – if The Kilmore & District Hospital does 
not expect to wholly settle within 12 months.

Conditional LSL is disclosed as a non-current liability. 

Any gain or loss followed revaluation of the present 
value of non-current LSL liability is recognised as a 
transaction, except to the extent that a gain or loss 
arises due to changes in estimations e.g. bond rate 
movements, inflation rate movements and changes in 
probability factors which are then recognised as other 
economic flows.

Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is 
terminated before the normal retirement date or when 
an employee decides to accept an offer of benefits in 
exchange for the termination of employment.

On-costs related to employee expense

Provision for on-costs, such as workers compensation 
and superannuation are recognised together with 
provisions for employee benefits. 
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Note 3.5. Superannuation

(i) The bases for determining the level of contributions is determined by the various actuaries of the defined benefit superannuation plans.

Employees of the Hospital are entitled to receive 
superannuation benefits and the Hospital contributes to 
both defined benefit and defined contribution plans. The 
defined benefit plan provides benefits based on years of 
service and final average salary. 

Defined Contirbution Superannuation Plans

In relation to defined contribution (i.e. accumulation) 
superannuation plans, the associated expense is simply 
the employer contributions that are paid or payable in 
respect of employees who are members of these plans 
during the reporting period. Contributions to defined 
contribution superannuation plans are expensed when 
incurred.

Defined Benefit Superannuation Plans 

The amount charged to the comprehensive operating 
statement in respect of defined benefit superannuation 
plans represents the contributions made by the Hospital 
to the superannuation plans in respect of the services 
of current Hospital staff during the reporting period. 
Superannuation contributions are made to the plans 
based on the relevant rules of each plan, and are based 
on actuarial advice.

The Hospital does not recognise any defined benefit 
liability in respect of the plan(s) because the entity 
has no legal or constructive obligation to pay future 
benefits relating to its employees; its only obligation is 
to pay superannuation contributions as they fall due. 
The Department of Treasury and Finance discloses the 
State’s defined benefits liabilities in its disclosure for 
administered items.

However superannuation contributions paid and payable 
for the reporting period are included as part of employee 
benefits in the Comprehensive Operating Statement of 
the Hospital. 

The name and details of the major employee 
superannuation funds and contributions made by the 
Kilmore & District Hospital are disclosed above.

Paid Contribution 
for the Year

Contribution Outstanding 
at Year End

Total 
2018 
$’000

Total 
2017 
$’000 

Total 
2018 
$’000

Total 
2017 
$’000 

Defined benefit plans: (i)

Health Super  11  18  -  - 

Defined Contribution Plans:

Health Super  921  778  -  - 

Hesta  287  228  -  - 

Total  1,219  1,024  -  - 
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Note 4: Key Assets to Support Service Delivery

The Hospital controls infrastructure and other investments that are utilised in fulfilling its objectives and 
conducting its activities. They represent the key resources that have been entrusted to the hospital to be utilised 
for delivery of those outputs.

Structure

4.1 Investments and other financial assets

4.2 Property, plant & equipment

4.3 Depreciation and amortisation

4.4 Intangible assets

Note 4.1: Investments and Other Financial Assets
Operating Fund Total 

2018 
$’000

2017 
$’000 

2018 
$’000

2017 
$’000 

CURRENT

Loans and Receivables

Term Deposit

     Australian Dollar Term Deposits > 3 months  4,269  5,630  4,269  5,630 

Total Current  4,269  5,630  4,269  5,630 

Represented by:

Investments  406  401  406  401 

Monies Held in Trust  3,863  5,229  3,863  5,229 

TOTAL INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS  4,269  5,630  4,269  5,630 

Investment Recognition

Investments are recognised and derecognised on trade 
date where purchase or sale of an investment is under a 
contract whose terms require delivery of the investment 
within the timeframe established by the market 
concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, net of 
transaction costs. 

Investments are classified as available-for-sale financial assets.

The Kilmore & District Hospital classifies its other 
financial assets between current and non-current 
assets based on the Board of Management’s intention 
at balance date with respect to the timing of disposal 
of each asset. The hospital assesses at each balance 
sheet date whether a financial asset or group of financial 
assets is impaired.

The Hospital’s investments must comply with Standing 
Direction 3.7.2 - Treasury and Investment Risk 
Management. The investment portfolio of the hospital is 
managed by Victorian Funds Management Corporation 
through speacialist fund managers and a Master 
Custodian. The Master Custodian holds the investments 
and conducts settlements pursuant to instructions from 
the specialist fund managers.

All financial assets, except those measured at fair value 
through the Comprehensive Operating Statement are 
subject to annual review for impairment.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a 
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial 
assets) is derecognised when: 

• the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have 
expired; or  

• the Hospital retains the right to receive cash flows from 
the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them 
in full without material delay to a third party under a 
‘pass through’ arrangement; or

• the Hospital has transferred its rights to receive cash 
flows from the asset and either:

 (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and 
rewards of the asset; or

 (b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all 
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred 
control of the asset.

Where the Hospital has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all the risks and rewards or transferred 
control, the asset is recognised to the extent of the 
Hospital’s continuing involvement in the asset.

(a) Ageing analysis of investments and other financial assets

Please refer to note 7.1 for the ageing analysis of other financial assets

(b) Nature and extent of risk arising from investments and other financial assets

Please refer to note 7.1 for the nature and extent of credit risk arising from other financial assets
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Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Hospital 
assesses whether there is objective evidence that a 
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. 
All financial instrument assets, except those measured 
at fair value through profit or loss, are subject to annual 
review for impairment.

Where the fair value of an investment in an equity 
instrument at balance date has reduced by 20 percent 
or more than its cost price or where its fair value has 
been less than its cost price for a period of 12 or more 
months, the financial asset is treated as impaired.

In order to determine an appropriate fair value as at 
30 June 2018 for its portfolio of financial assets, the 
Hospital and its controlled entities used the market value 
of investments held provided by the portfolio managers.

Doubtful debts 

Receivables are assessed for bad and doubtful debts on 
a regular basis. Those bad debts considered as written 
off by mutual consent are classified as a transaction 
expense. Bad debts not written off by mutual consent 
and the allowance for doubtful debts are classified as 
other economic flows in the net result. 

Note 4.1: Investments and Other Financial Assets (continued)

Note 4.2: Property, Plant & Equipment
(a) Gross carrying amount and accumulated depreciation

Total 
2018 
$’000

Total 
2017 
$’000 

Land

Land at Fair Value  1,219  1,219 

Total Land  1,219  1,219 

Buildings

Buildings Under Construction at cost  105  64 

Buildings at Fair Value  53,597  53,597 

Less Accumulated Depreciation  28,658  25,863 

Total Buildings  25,044  27,798 

Plant & Equipment 

Plant & Equipment at Fair Value  6,086  5,467 

Less Accumulated Depreciation  4,039  3,725 

Total Plant & Equipment  2,047  1,742 

Motor Vehicles 

Motor Vehicles at fair value  242  242 

Less Accumulated Depreciation  66  43 

Total Motor Vehicles  176  199 

Leased Assets

IT Equipment - Hume Rural Health Alliance  96  128 

Less Accumulated Amortisation  59  67 

Total Leased Assets  37  61 

TOTAL PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT  28,523  31,019 
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(b) Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of each class of asset 

Crown 
Land 
$’000

Buildings 
$’000

Plant & 
Equipment 

$’000

Motor 
Vehicles 

$’000

Leased 
Assets 

$’000
Total 
$’000

Balance at 1 July 2016 1,094 30,580 1,602 143  75 33,494

Additions  -  63 486  150  10 709

Disposals  -  -  -  (75)  (22)  (97)

Revaluation Increments/(Decrements)  125  -  -  -  -  125 

Depreciation expense (note 4.3)  -  (2,845)  (346)  (19)  (2)  (3,212)

Balance at 30 June 2017 1,219 27,798 1,742 199 61 31,019

Additions  -  41 618  -  10 669

Disposals  -  -  -  -  (32)  (32)

Revaluation Increments/(Decrements)  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Depreciation expense (note 4.3)  -  (2,795)  (313)  (23)  (2)  (3,133)

Balance at 30 June 2018 1,219 25,044 2,047 176 37 28,523

Land and Buildings and Leased Assets Carried at 
Valuation

The Valuer-General Victoria undertook to re-value all of 
the Kilmore and District Hospital’s owned and leased 
land and buildings to determine their fair value.

The valuation, which conforms to Australian Valuation 
Standards, was determined by reference to the 
amounts for which assets could be exchanged between 
knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length 
transaction. The valuation was based on independent 
assessments. The effective date of the valuation is 30 
June 2014.

In compliance with FRD 103F, in the year ended 30 June 
2018, the Kilmore & District Hospital’s management 
conducted an annual assessment of the fair value of 
land and buildings and leased buildings. To facilitate this, 
management obtained from the Department of treasury 
and Finance the Valuer General indices for the financial 
year ended 30 June 2018.

The fair value of the land had been adjusted by a 
managerial revaluation in 2017.

There was no material financial impact on change in fair 
value of buildings and leased buildings.

Note 4.2: Property, Plant & Equipment (continued)
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Carrying 
amount as at 
30 June 2018 

$’000

Fair value measurement at end 
of reporting period using:

Level 1(i) 
$’000 

Level 2(i) 
$’000

Level 3(i) 
$’000

Land at Fair Value

Specialised Land  1,219  -  -  1,219 

Total of Land at Fair Value  1,219  1,219 

Buildings at Fair Value

Specialised Buildings  24,939  -  -  24,939 

Total of Building at Fair Value  24,939  -  -  24,939 

Plant and Equipment at Fair Value

Plant Equipment and Vehicles at Fair Value

- Vehicles (Ii)  176  176 

- Plant and Equipment  2,047  2,047 

Total of Plant, Equipment and Vehicles at Fair Value  2,223  176  -  2,047 

Assets Under Construction at Fair Value

Specialised Buildings  105  -  -  105 

Total Assets Under Construction at Fair Value  105  -  -  105 

Total Property, Plant & Equipment  28,486  176  -  28,310 

Carrying 
amount as at 
30 June 2017 

$’000

Fair value measurement at end 
of reporting period using:

Level 1(i) 
$’000 

Level 2(i) 
$’000

Level 3(i) 
$’000

Land at Fair Value

Specialised Land  1,219  -  -  1,219 

Total of Land at Fair Value  1,219  -  -  1,219 

Buildings at Fair Value

Specialised Buildings  27,734  -  -  27,734 

Total of Building at Fair Value  27,734  -  -  27,734 

Plant and Equipment at Fair Value

Plant Equipment and Vehicles at Fair Value

- Vehicles (Ii)  199  199 

- Plant and Equipment  1,742  1,742 

Total of Plant, Equipment and Vehicles at Fair Value  1,941  199  -  1,742 

Assets Under Construction at Fair Value

Specialised Buildings  64  -  -  64 

Total Assets Under Construction at Fair Value  64  -  -  64 

Total Property, Plant & Equipment  30,958  199  -  30,759 

(c) Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets

Note 

(i) Classified in accordance with the fair value hierarchy, see Note 1 

(ii) There have been no transfers between levels during the period.

Note 4.2: Property, Plant & Equipment (continued)
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Land Buildings
Plant and 

equipment
Assets under 
construction

Balance at 1 July 2017  1,219  27,734  1,742  64 

Purchases (sales)  -  -  618  41 

Transfers in (out) of Level 3  -  -  -  - 

Gains or losses recognised in net result

- Depreciation  -  (2,795)  (313)  - 

- Impairment loss  -  -  -  - 

Items recognised in other comprehensive income

- Revaluation  -  -  -  - 

Balance at 30 June 2018  1,219  24,939  2,047  105 

Land Buildings
Plant and 

equipment
Assets under 
construction

Balance at 1 July 2016  1,094  30,580  1,602  - 

Purchases (sales)  -  -  451  64 

Transfers in (out) of Level 3  125  -  -  - 

Gains or losses recognised in net result

- Depreciation  -  (2,846)  (311)  - 

- Impairment loss  -  -  -  - 

Items recognised in other comprehensive income

- Revaluation  -  -  -  - 

Balance at 30 June 2017  1,219  27,734  1,742  64 

(d) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value

Note 4.2: Property, Plant & Equipment (continued)

Classified in accordance with the fair value heirarchy, refer Note 4.2(c).
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(e) Fair Value Determination

Asset class
Examples of types of 
assets

Expected fair 
value level

Likely valuation 
approach

Significant inputs 
(Level 3 only)(c) 

Non-specialised 
land

In areas where there is an 
active market:

- Vacant land

- Land not subject to 
restrictions as to use or sale

Level 2 Market approach n.a.

Specialised 
Land (Crown / 
Freehold)

- Land subject to restriction as 
to use and/or sale

- Land in areas where there is 
not an active market

Level 3 Market approach Community 
Service Obligations 
Adjustments (c)

Non-specialised 
buildings

For general/commercial 
buildings that are just built 

Level 2 Market approach n.a.

Specialised 
buildings (a)

Specialised buildings 
with limited alternative 
uses and/or substantial 
customisation e.g. prisons, 
hospitals and schools

Level 3 Depreciated replacement 
cost approach

Cost per square metre
Useful life

Heritage assets Heritage buildings Level 3 Depreciated replacement 
cost approach (b)

Cost per square metre
Useful life

Dwellings (a) Social/public housing, 
employee housing

Level 2, where 
there is an active 
market in the area

Market approach n.a.

Level 3, where 
there is no active 
market in the area

Depreciated replacement 
cost approach

Cost per square metre
Useful life

Vehicles If there is an active 
resale market available

Level 2 Market approach n.a.

If there is no active resale 
market available

Level 3 Depreciated replacement 
cost approach

Cost per square metre
Useful life

Plant and 
equipment (a)

Specialised items with limited 
alternative uses and/or 
substantial customisation

Level 3 Depreciated replacement 
cost approach

Cost per square metre
Useful life

Infrastructure Any type Level 3 Depreciated replacement 
cost approach

Cost per square metre
Useful life

Road, 
infrastructure & 
earthworks (a)

Any type Level 3 Depreciated replacement 
cost approach

Cost per square metre
Useful life

Cultural assets Artworks, for which there is an 
active market for the item

Level 2 Market approach n.a.

Note 4.2: Property, Plant & Equipment (continued)

(a) Newly built/acquired assets could be categorised as Level 2 assets as depreciation would not be a significant unobservable input (based on the 
10 per cent materiality threshold).

(b) AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement provides an exemption for not for profit public sector entities from disclosing the sensitivity analysis relating to 
‘unrealised gains/(losses) on non-financial assets’ if the assets are held primarily for their current service potential rather than to generate net cash 
inflows.

(c) CSO adjustment of 20% was applied to reduce the market approach value for the hospital’s specialised land.

There were no changes in valuation techniques throughout the period to 30 June 2018.



53THE KILMORE & DISTRICT HOSPITAL
ANNUAL REPORT 2017-2018

The Kilmore & District Hospital
Notes to the Financial Statements

30 June 2018

Initial Recognition

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured 
initially at cost and subsequently revalued at fair value 
less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss. 
Where an asset is acquired for no or nominal cost, 
the cost is its fair value at the date of acquisition. 
Assets transferred as part of a merger/machinery of 
government change are transferred at their carrying 
amounts.

The cost of a leasehold improvement is capitalised as an 
asset and depreciated over the shorter of the remaining 
term of the lease or the estimated useful life of the 
improvements.

The initial cost for non-financial physical assets under 
finance lease (refer to Note 6.1) is measured at amounts 
equal to the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, 
the present value of the minimum lease payments, each 
determined at the inception of the lease.

Crown land is measured at fair value with regard to the 
property’s highest and best use after due consideration 
is made for any legal or physical restrictions imposed 
on the asset, public announcements or commitments 
made in relation to the intended use of the asset. 
Theoretical opportunities that may be available in 
relation to the asset(s) are not taken into account until 
it is virtually certain that any restrictions will no longer 
apply. Therefore, unless otherwise disclosed, the current 
use of these non-financial physical assets will be their 
highest and best uses.

Land and buildings are recognised initially at cost and 
subsequently measured at fair value less accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment loss.

Subsequent Measurement

Consistent with AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement, 
the Hospital determines the policies and procedures 
for recurring property, plant and equipment fair value 
measurements, in accordance with the requirements of 
AASB 13 and the relevant FRDs.

All property, plant and equipment for which fair value is 
measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 
categorised within the fair value hierarchy.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Hospital 
has determined classes of assets on the basis of the 
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset and the 
level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

In addition, the Hospital determines whether transfers 
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by 
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as 
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Hospital 
has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the 
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset 
or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as 
explained above.

In addition, the Hospital determines whether transfers 

have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as 
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Valuer-General Victoria (VGV) is the hospital’s 
independent valuation agency.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed 
on an ongoing basis.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell 
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date.

Consideration of highest and best use (HBU) for 
non-financial physical assets 

Judgements about highest and best use must take into 
account the characteristics of the assets concerned, 
including restrictions on the use and disposal of 
assets arising from the asset’s physical nature and any 
applicable legislative/contractual arrangements.

In accordance with paragraph AASB 13.29, Health 
Services can assume the current use of a non-financial 
physical asset is its HBU unless market or other factors 
suggest that a different use by market participants would 
maximise the value of the asset.

Therefore, an assessment of the HBU will be required 
when the indicators are triggered within a reporting 
period, which suggest the market participants would have 
perceived an alternative use of an asset that can generate 
maximum value. Once identified, Health Services are 
required to engage with VGV or other independent valuers 
for formal HBU assessment.

These indicators, as a minimum, include: 

External factors

• Changed acts, regulations, local law or such 
instrument which affects or may affect the use or 
development of the asset; 

• Changes in planning scheme, including zones, 
reservations, overlays that would affect or remove the 
restrictions imposed on the asset’s use from its past 
use; 

• Evidence that suggest the current use of an asset is 
no longer core to requirements to deliver a Hospital’s 
service obligation; 

• Evidence that suggests that the asset might be sold 
or demolished at reaching the late stage of an asset’s 
life cycle. 

Valuation hierarchy 

Health Services need to use valuation techniques 
that are appropriate for the circumstances and where 
there is sufficient data available to measure fair value, 
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and 
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured 
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised 
within the fair value hierarchy.

Note 4.2: Property, Plant & Equipment (continued)
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Identifying unobservable inputs (level 3) fair value 
measurements

Level 3 fair value inputs are unobservable valuation 
inputs for an asset or liability. These inputs require 
significant judgement and assumptions in deriving fair 
value for both financial and non-financial assets.

Unobservable inputs shall be used to measure fair value 
to the extent that relevant observable inputs are not 
available, thereby allowing for situations in which there 
is little, if any, market activity for the asset or liability 
at the measurement date. However, the fair value 
measurement objective remains the same, i.e., an exit 
price at the measurement date from the perspective of 
a market participant that holds the asset or owes the 
liability. Therefore, unobservable inputs shall reflect the 
assumptions that market participants would use when 
pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about 
risk.

Assumptions about risk include the inherent risk in 
a particular valuation technique used to measure 
fair value (such as a pricing risk model) and the risk 
inherent in the inputs to the valuation technique. A 
measurement that does not include an adjustment for 
risk would not represent a fair value measurement if 
market participants would include one when pricing the 
asset or liability i.e., it might be necessary to include a 
risk adjustment when there is significant measurement 
uncertainty. For example, when there has been a 
significant decrease in the volume or level of activity 
when compared with normal market activity for the 
asset or liability or similar assets or liabilities, and the 
Hospital has determined that the transaction price or 
quoted price does not represent fair value.

A Hospital shall develop unobservable inputs using the 
best information available in the circumstances, which 
might include the Hospital’s own data. In developing 
unobservable inputs, a Hospital may begin with its own 
data, but it shall adjust this data if reasonably available 
information indicates that other market participants 
would use different data or there is something particular 
to the Hospital that is not available to other market 
participants. A Hospial need not undertake exhaustive 
efforts to obtain information about other market 
participant assumptions. However, a Hospital shall take 
into account all information about market participant 
assumptions that is reasonably available. Unobservable 
inputs developed in the manner described above are 
considered market participant assumptions and meet 
the object of a fair value measurement.

Non-Specialised Land, Non-Specialised Buildings 
and Cultural Assets

Non-specialised land, non-specialised buildings and 
cultural assets are valued using the market approach. 
Under this valuation method, the assets are compared 
to recent comparable sales or sales of comparable 
assets which are considered to have nominal or no 
added improvement value.

For non-specialised land and non-specialised buildings, 
an independent valuation was performed by the 
Valuer-General Victoria to determine the fair value 

using the market approach. Valuation of the assets 
was determined by analysing comparable sales and 
allowing for share, size, topography, location and other 
relevant factors specific to the asset being valued. An 
appropriate rate per square metre has been applied to 
the subject asset. The effective date of the valuation is 
30 June 2014.

In June 2017 a managerial valuation was carried out in 
accordance with FRD 103F to revalue the land to its fair 
value.

Specialised Land and Specialised Buildings

Specialised land includes Crown Land which is 
measured at fair value with regard to the property’s 
highest and best use after due consideration is made 
for any legal or physical restrictions imposed on the 
asset, public announcements or commitments made 
in relation to the intended use of the asset. Theoretical 
opportunities that may be available in relation to the 
assets are not taken into account until it is virtually 
certain that any restrictions will no longer apply. 
Therefore, unless otherwise disclosed, the current use of 
these non-financial physical assets will be their highest 
and best use.

During the reporting period, the Hospital held Crown 
Land. The nature of this asset means that there are 
certain limitations and restrictions imposed on its use 
and/or disposal that may impact their fair value.

The market approach is also used for specialised land 
and specialised buildings although it is adjusted for 
the community service obligation (CSO) to reflect the 
specialised nature of the assets being valued. Specialised 
assets contain significant, unobservable adjustments; 
therefore these assets are classified as Level 3 under the 
market based direct comparison approach.

The CSO adjustment is a reflection of the valuer’s 
assessment of the impact of restrictions associated with 
an asset to the extent that is also equally applicable 
to market participants. This approach is in light of 
the highest and best use consideration required for 
fair value measurement, and takes into account the 
use of the asset that is physically possible, legally 
permissible and financially feasible. As adjustments of 
CSO are considered as significant unobservable inputs, 
specialised land would be classified as Level 3 assets.

For the Hospital, the depreciated replacement 
cost method is used for the majority of specialised 
buildings, adjusting for the associated depreciation. As 
depreciation adjustments are considered as significant 
and unobservable inputs in nature, specialised buildings 
are classified as Level 3 for fair value measurements.

An independent valuation of the Hospital’s specialised 
land and specialised buildings was performed by the 
Valuer-General Victoria. The valuation was performed 
using the market approach adjusted for CSO. The 
effective date of the valuation is 30 June 2014.

In June 2017 a managerial valuation was carried out in 
accordance with FRD 103F to revalue the land to its fair 
value.

Note 4.2: Property, Plant & Equipment (continued)
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Note 4.2: Property, Plant & Equipment (continued)
Vehicles

The Hospital acquires new vehicles and at times 
disposes of them before completion of their economic 
life. The process of acquisition, use and disposal in the 
market is managed by the Hospital who set relevant 
depreciation rates during use to reflect the consumption 
of the vehicles. As a result, the fair value of vehicles 
does not differ materially from the carrying amount 
(depreciated cost).

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment (including medical equipment, 
computers and communication equipment and furniture 
and fittings) are held at carrying amount (depreciated 
cost). When plant and equipment is specialised in use, 
such that it is rarely sold other than as part of a going 
concern, the depreciated replacement cost is used to 
estimate the fair value. Unless there is market evidence 
that current replacement costs are significantly different 
from the original acquisition cost, it is considered unlikely 
that depreciated replacement cost will be materially 
different from the existing carrying amount. 

There were no changes in valuation techniques 
throughout the period to 30 June 2018.

For all assets measured at fair value, the current use is 
considered the highest and best use.

Revaluations of Non-current Physical Assets

Non-current physical assets are measured at fair value 
and are revalued in accordance with FRD 103F Non-
Current Physical Assets.  This revaluation process 
normally occurs every five years, based upon the 
asset’s Government Purpose Classification, but may 
occur more frequently if fair value assessments indicate 
material changes in values. Independent valuers are 
used to conduct these scheduled revaluations and any 
interim revaluations are determined in accordance with 
the requirements of the FRDs. Revaluation increments 
or decrements arise from differences between an asset’s 
carrying value and fair value.

Revaluation increments are recognised in ‘Other 
Comprehensive Income’ and are credited directly to 

the asset revaluation surplus, except that, to the extent 
that an increment reverses a revaluation decrement 
in respect of that same class of asset previously 
recognised as an expense in net result, the increment is 
recognised as income in the net result.

Revaluation decrements are recognised in ‘Other 
Comprehensive Income’ to the extent that a credit 
balance exists in the asset revaluation surplus in respect 
of the same class of property, plant and equipment.

Revaluation increases and revaluation decreases relating 
to individual assets within an asset class are offset 
against one another within that class but are not offset 
in respect of assets in different classes.

Revaluation surplus is not transferred to accumulated 
funds on de-recognition of the relevant asset, except 
where an asset is transferred via contributed capital.

In accordance with FRD 103F, the Hospital’s non-
current physical assets were assessed to determine 
whether revaluation of the non-current physical assets 
was required.
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Note 4.3: Depreciation and Amortisation 
Total 
2018 
$’000

Total 
2017 
$’000 

Depreciation

Buildings  2,795  2,845 

Plant & Equipment  313  346 

Motor Vehicles  23  19 

IT Equipment - Leased Assets  2  2 

Total Depreciation  3,133  3,212 

Amortisation

Intangible Assets - HRHA  2  2 

Total Amortisation  2  2

Total Depreciation and Amortisation  3,135  3,214 

Depreciation 

All infrastructure assets, buildings, plant and equipment 
and other non-financial physical assets (excluding items 
under operating leases, assets held for sale, land and 
investment properties) that have finite useful lives are 
depreciated. Depreciation is generally calculated on 
a straight-line basis at rates that allocate the asset’s 
value, less any estimated residual value over its 
estimated useful life (refer AASB 116 Property, Plant and 
Equipment).

The Hospital determines the useful lives of assets 
by consideration of the nature and characteristics of 
specific assets. The estimated useful lives, residual 
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end 
of each annual reporting period, and adjustments made 
where appropriate.

Amortisation 

Amortisation is the systematic allocation of the 
depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life. If a 
Health Service has items such as patents, trademarks, 
computer software or development expenses that 
are being capitalised, these should be included under 
‘Intangible Assets’ (refer AASB 138 Intangible Assets) 
and amortised.

The following table indicates the expected useful lives of non current assets on which the depreciation charges are based.

 2018 2017

Buildings

– Structure Shell Building Fabric 45 to 60 years 45 to 60 years

– Site Engineering Services and Central Plant 30 to 40 years 30 to 40 years

Central Plant  

– Fit Out 20 to 30 years 20 to 30 years

– Trunk Reticulated Building Systems 30 to 40 years 30 to 40 years

Plant & Equipment Up to 10 years Up to 10 years

Medical Equipment Up to 10 years  Up to 10 years

Computers and Communication 3 years 3 years

Furniture and Fitting Up to 10 years Up to 10 years

Motor Vehicles Up to 10 years Up to 10 years

As part of the buildings valuation, building values were separated into components and each component assessed for its 
useful life which is represented above.



57THE KILMORE & DISTRICT HOSPITAL
ANNUAL REPORT 2017-2018

The Kilmore & District Hospital
Notes to the Financial Statements

30 June 2018

Note 4.4: Intangible Assets
Total 
2018 
$’000

Total 
2017 
$’000 

Hume Rural Health Alliance  30  76 

– Less Acc'd Amortisation  9  6 

Total Intangible Assets  21  70 

Software 
$’000

Software 
$’000 

Balance at 1 July 2016 40 40

Additions 32 32

Amortisation (note 4.3)  (2)  (2)

Balance at 1 July 2017 70 70

Additions  -  - 

Disposals  (47)  (47)

Amortisation (note 4.3)  (2)  (2)

Balance at 30 June 2018 21 21

Reconciliation of the carrying amounts of intangible assets at the beginning and end of the previous and current financial year:

Intangible assets

Intangible assets represent identifiable non-monetary 
assets without physical substance such as patents, 
trademarks, and computer software and carpark 
revenue recognition rights.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. 
Subsequently, intangible assets with finite useful lives 
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation 
and accumulated impairment losses.  Costs incurred 
subsequent to initial acquisition are capitalised when it 
is expected that additional future economic benefits will 
flow to the Hospital.
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Note 5: Other Assets and Liabilities
This section sets out those assets and liabilities that arose from the Hospital’s operations.

Structure

5.1 Receivables

5.2 Inventories

5.3 Other liabilities

5.4 Prepayments and other assets

5.5 Payables

Note 5.1: Receivables
Total 
2018 
$’000

Total 
2017 
$’000 

CURRENT

Contractual

Inpatient Fees  83  49 

District Nursing Fees  39  30 

Aged Care Fees  63  12 

Simplified Billing  22  14 

Department of Health & Human Services  27  - 

Trade Debtors  1,216  466 

Hume Rural Health Alliance  167  115 

Accrued Revenue  21  15 

Less Allowance for Doubtful Debts  (10)  (3)

 1,628  698 

Statutory

GST Receivable  99  128 

 99  128 

TOTAL CURRENT RECEIVABLES  1,727  826 

NON-CURRENT

Statutory

Long Service Leave - Department of Health and Human Services  575  380 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT RECEIVABLES  575  380 

TOTAL RECEIVABLES  2,302  1,206 

(a) Movement in the Allowance for doubtful debts Total 
2018 
$’000

Total 
2017 
$’000

Balance at beginning of year 3 2

Increase/(decrease) in allowance recognised in net result  7  1 

Balance at end of year 10 3
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Note 5.1: Receivables (continued)
Receivables consist of:
• contractual receivables, which consists of debtors 

in relation to goods and services and accrued 
investment income; and

• statutory receivables, which predominantly includes 
amounts owing from the Victorian Government and 
Goods and Services Tax (“GST”) input tax credits 
recoverable.

Receivables that are contractual are classified as 
financial instruments and categorised as loans and 
receivables. Statutory receivables are recognised and 
measured similarly to contractual receivables (except 
for impairment), but are not classified as financial 
instruments because they do not arise from a contract.

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and 
subsequently measured at amortised cost less any 
accumulated impairment. Trade debtors are carried at 

Inventories include goods and other property held either 
for sale, consumption or for distribution at no or nominal 
cost in the ordinary course of business operations. It 
excludes depreciable assets.

Inventories held for distribution are measured at cost, 
adjusted for any loss of service potential. All other 
inventories, including land held for sale, are measured at 
the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Inventories acquired for no cost or nominal 
considerations are measured at current replacement 
cost at the date of acquisition.

nominal amounts due and are due for settlement within 
30 days from the date of recognition.

In assessing impairment of statutory (non-contractual) 
financial assets, which are not financial instruments, 
professional judgement is applied in assessing 
materiality using estimates, averages and other 
computational methods in accordance with AASB 136 
Impairment of Assets.

Trade debtors are carried at nominal amounts due and 
are due for settlement within 30 days from the date 
of recognition. Collectability of debts is reviewed on 
an ongoing basis, and debts which are known to be 
uncollectible are written off. A provision for doubtful 
debts is recognised when there is objective evidence 
that the debts may not be collected and bad debts are 
written off when identified.

The bases used in assessing loss of service potential for 
inventories held for distribution include current replacement 
cost and technical or functional obsolescence.  Technical 
obsolescence occurs when an item still functions for 
some or all of the tasks it was originally acquired to do, 
but no longer matches existing technologies.  Functional 
obsolescence occurs when an item no longer functions 
the way it did when it was first acquired.

Cost is assigned to land for sale (undeveloped, under 
development and developed) and to other high value, 
low volume inventory items on a specific identification of 
cost basis. The cost for all other inventory is measured 
on the basis of weighted average cost. 

Note 5.2: Inventories
Total 
2018 
$’000

Total 
2017 
$’000 

Pharmaceuticals - at cost  -  4 

Catering Supplies - at cost  43  40 

Medical and Surgical Lines - at cost  133  70 

TOTAL INVENTORIES  176  114 
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Note 5.3: Other Liabilities
Total 
2018 
$’000

Total 
2017 
$’000 

CURRENT

Monies Held In Trust

Resident Monies Held in Trust*  -  - 

Accommodation Bonds*  3,863  5,228 

Total Other Liabilities  3,863  5,228 

* Total Monies Held In Trust

Represented by the following assets:

Cash Assets (refer to note 6.2)  -  - 

Investment and other Financial Assets (refer to Note 4.1)  3,863  5,228 

 3,863  5,228 

Note 5.4: Prepayments and Non-financial Assets
Total 
2018 
$’000

Total 
2017 
$’000 

Prepayments  54  6 

Prepayments - Hume Rural Health Alliance  6  6 

TOTAL OTHER ASSETS  60  12 

Other non-financial assets include prepayments which represent payments in advance of receipt of goods or services or 
that part of expenditure made in one accounting period covering a term extending beyond that period.
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Note 5.5: Payables
Total 
2018 
$’000

Total 
2017 
$’000 

CURRENT

Contractual

Trade Creditors  1,956  1,150 

Accrued Expenses  12  14 

Hume Rural Health Alliance  21  22 

1989 1186

Statutory

Department of Health and Human Services  -  72 

- 72

CURRENT PAYABLES  1,989  1,258 

TOTAL PAYABLES 1,989 1,258

Payables consist of:

• contractual payables, classified as financial 
instruments and measured at amortised cost. 
Accounts payable represent liabilities for goods and 
services provided to the Department prior to the end 
of the financial year that are unpaid; and statutory 
payables, such as goods and services tax and fringe 
benefits tax payables.

The following table discloses the contractual maturity analysis for the Hospital’s financial liabilities. For interest rates 
applicable to each class of liability refer to individual notes to the financial statements.

(i) Ageing analysis of financial liabilities excludes the types of statutory financial liabilities (i.e GST payable).

• statutory payables, that are recognised and 
measured similarly to contractual payables, but 
are not classified as financial instruments and not 
included in the category of financial liabilities at 
amortised cost, because they do not arise from 
contracts.

Maturity analysis of financial liabilities as at 30 June

Carrying 
Amount       

$’000

Nominal 
Amount       

$’000

Maturity Dates

Less Than 
1 Month

1-3  
Months 

3 Months       
- 1 Year

1-5         
Years

2018

Financial Liabilities 

At amortised cost

Trade creditors and accruals 1,989  1,989  1,989  -  -  - 

Borrowings 37  37  -  -  18  19 

Monies Held In Trust 3,863  3,863 - 425 1,506 1,932

Total Financial Liabilities  5,889 5,889 1,989 425 1,524 1,951

2017

Financial Liabilities 

At amortised cost

Trade creditors and accruals  1,186  1,186  1,186  -  -    - 

Borrowings  61  61  -  -  29  32 

Monies Held In Trust  5,228  5,228 - 575 2,039 2,614

Total Financial Liabilities  6,475  6,475 1,186 575 2,068 2,646
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Note 6: How We Finance Our Operations
This section provides information on the sources of finance utilised by the Hospital during its operations, along 
with interest expenses (the cost of borrowings) and other information related to financing activities of the Hospital.

This section includes disclosures of balances that are financial instruments (such as borrowings and cash 
balances).  Note: 7.1 provides additional, specific financial instrument disclosures.

Structure 

6.1 Borrowings       

6.2 Cash and cash equivalents      

6.3 Commitments for expenditure

Note 6.1: Borrowings
Total 
2018 
$’000

Total 
2017 
$’000 

CURRENT

Finance Lease Liability  18  29 

Total Australian Dollars Borrowings  18  29 

Total Current  18  29 

NON CURRENT

Finance Lease Liability  19  32 

Total Australian Dollars Borrowings  19  32 

Total Non-Current  19  32 

Total Borrowings  37  61 

(a) Maturity analysis of borrowings
Please refer to note 5.5 for the ageing analysis of borrowings.

(b) Defaults and breaches
During the current and prior year, there were no defaults and breaches of any of the loans.
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Note 6.1: Borrowings (continued)
(c) Finance Lease liabilities

Minimum future 
lease payments

Present Value of Minimum 
future lease payments

2018 2017 2018 2017 

Finance Leases

Repayments in relation to finance leases are payable as follows:

Not longer than one year 18 29 18 29

Later than one year but not longer than five years 19 32 19 32

Minimum future lease payments 37 61 37 61

Less future finance charges  -  -  -  - 

TOTAL 37 61 37 61

Included in the financial statements as:   

Current borrowings lease liabilities 18 29 18 29

Non-current borrowings lease liabilities 19 32 19 32

TOTAL 37 61 37 61

Borrowing Recognition 

A lease is a right to use an asset for an agreed period 
of time in exchange for payment. Leases are classified 
at their inception as either operating or finance leases 
based on the economic substance of the agreement 
so as to reflect the risks and rewards incidental to 
ownership.

Leases of property, plant and equipment are classified 
as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease 
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership to the lessee.  

All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Finance leases

Entity as lessee

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities 
at amounts equal to the fair value of the lease property 
or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease 
payment, each determined at the inception of the lease.

The lease asset is accounted for as a non-financial 
physical asset and is depreciated over the shorter of the 
estimated useful life of the asset or the term of the lease.

If there is certainty that the hospital will obtain the 
ownership of the lease asset by the end of the lease 
term, the asset shall be depreciated over the useful life 
of the asset.

If there is no reasonable certainty that the lessee will 
obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset 
shall be fully depreciated over the shorter of the lease 
term and its useful life.

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between 
reduction of the outstanding lease liability, and the 
periodic finance expense which is calculated using the 
interest rate implicit in the lease, and charged directly to 
the comprehensive operating statement.

Contingent rentals associated with finance leases are 
recognised as an expense in the period in which they 
are incurred.
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Note 6.2: Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total 
2018 
$’000

Total 
2017 
$’000 

Cash at Bank  1,567  1,183 

Deposits at Call  -  - 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents  1,567  1,183 

Represented by:

Cash for Hospital Operations (as per Cash Flow Statement)  1,330  1,024 

Cash - Hume Rural Health Alliance  237  159 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents  1,567  1,183 

Cash and cash equivalents recognised on the Balance 
Sheet comprise cash on hand and in banks, deposits 
at call and highly liquid investments (with an original 
maturity of three months or less), which are held for 
the purpose of meeting short term cash commitments 
rather than for investment purposes, which are 

Commitments for future expenditure include operating 
and capital commitments arising from contracts. These 
commitments are disclosed by way of a note at their 
nominal value and are inclusive of the GST payable. 
In addition, where it is considered appropriate and 

readily convertible to known amounts of cash with an 

insignificant risk of changes in value.

For cash flow statement presentation purposes, cash 
and cash equivalents include bank overdrafts, which are 
included as liabilities on the Balance Sheet.

provides additional relevant information to users, the 
net present values of significant individual projects 
are stated. These future expenditures cease to be 
disclosed as commitments once the related liabilities are 
recognised on the balance sheet.

Note 6.3: Commitments for Expenditure
Total 
2018 
$’000

Total 
2017 
$’000 

Lease Commitments

Finance Leases - HRHA 37 61

Total lease commitments 37 61
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Note 7: Risks, Contingencies and Valuation Uncertainties
Introduction

The Hospital is exposed to risk from its activities and outside factors. In addition, it is often necessary to make 
judgements and estimates associated with recognition and measurement of items in the financial statements. This 
section sets out financial instrument specific information, (including exposures to financial risks) as well as those 
items that are contingent in nature or require a higher level of judgement to be applied, which for the Hospital is 
related mainly to fair value determination.

Structure      

7.1 Financial instruments

7.2 Contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Financial instruments arise out of contractual agreements that give rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 
liability or equity instrument of another entity. Due to the nature of the Hospital’s activities, certain financial assets and 
financial liabilities arise under statute rather than a contract. Such financial assets and financial liabilities do not meet 
the definition of financial instruments in AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Presentation. 

Note 7.1: Financial Instruments

(a) Financial instruments: categorisation 

2018

Contractual 
financial assets 

- loans and 
receivables 

$’000

Contractual 
financial 

liabilities at 
amortised cost

$’000
Total 
$’000

Contractual Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents  1,567  -    1,567 

Trade debtors and accruals  1,628  -    1,628 

Deposits  4,269  -    4,269 

Total Financial Assets (i)  7,464  -    7,464 

Financial Liabilities

Payables  -    1,989  1,989 

Borrowings  -    37  37 

Monies Held In Trust  -    3,863  3,863 

Total Financial Liabilities (i)  -    5,889  5,889 

2017

Contractual 
financial assets 

- loans and 
receivables 

$’000

Contractual 
financial 

liabilities at 
amortised cost

$’000
Total 
$’000

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents  1,183  -    1,183 

Trade debtors and accruals  698  -    698 

Deposits  5,630  -    5,630 

Total Financial Assets (i)  7,511  -    7,511 

Financial Liabilities

Payables  -    1,186  1,186 

Borrowings  -    61  61 

Monies Held In Trust  -    5,228  5,228 

Total Financial Liabilities (i)  -    6,475  6,475 

(i) The carrying amount excludes statutory receivables (i.e. GST receivable and DHHS receivable) and statutory payables (i.e. Revenue in Advance and 
DHHS payable).
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(b) Net holding gain/(loss) on financial instruments by category

Net holding 
gain/(loss)

$'000

Total interest 
income/ 

(expense) 
$'000

Fee income / 
(expense) 

$’000

Impairment 
loss 

$’000
Total 
$'000

2018

Fianacial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents (i)  -    -    -    -    -   

Loans and Receivables (i)  -    16  -    -    16 

Total Financial Assets  -    16  -    -    16 

Financial Liabilities

At Amortised Cost (ii)  -  -  -  -  - 

Total Financial Liabilities  -  -  -  -  - 

2017

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents (i)  -    -    -    -    -   

Loans and Receivables (i)  -    24  -    -    24 

Total Financial Assets  -    24  -    -    24 

Financial Liabilities

At Amortised Cost (ii)  -  -  -  -  - 

Total Financial Liabilities  -  -  -  -  - 

(i) For cash and cash equivalents, loans or receivables and available-for-sale financial assets, the net gain or loss is calculated by taking the 
movement in the fair value of the asset, interest revenue, plus or minus foreign exchange gains or losses arising from revaluation of the financial 
assets, and minus any impairment recognised in the net result;

(ii) For financial liabilities measured at amortised cost, the net gain or loss is calculated by taking the interest expense measured at amortised cost.

Note 7.1: Financial Instruments (continued)



67THE KILMORE & DISTRICT HOSPITAL
ANNUAL REPORT 2017-2018

The Kilmore & District Hospital
Notes to the Financial Statements

30 June 2018

Note 7.1: Financial Instruments (continued)
Categories of financial instruments

Loans and receivables and cash are financial 
instrument assets with fixed and determinable payments 
that are not quoted on an active market. These assets 
and liabilities are initially recognised at fair value plus any 
directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to 
initial measurement, loans and receivables are measured 
at amortised cost using the effective interest method 
(and for assets, less any impairment). The Hospital 
recognises the following assets in this category:

• cash and deposits

• receivables (excluding statutory receivables);

• term deposits; and

• certain debt securities.

Available-for-sale financial instrument assets are 
those designated as available-for-sale or not classified 
in any other category of financial instrument asset. Such 
assets are initially recognised at fair value. Subsequent 
to initial recognition, they are measured at fair value 
with gains and losses arising from changes in fair 
value, recognised in ‘Other economic flows – other 
comprehensive income’ until the investment is disposed. 
Movements resulting from impairment and foreign 
currency changes are recognised in the net result as 
other economic flows. On disposal, the cumulative gain 
or loss previously recognised in ‘Other economic flows 
– other comprehensive income’ is transferred to other 
economic flows in the net result.

Held to maturity financial assets: If the Hospital 
has the positive intent and ability to hold nominated 
investments to maturity, then such financial assets may 
be classified as held to maturity. These are recognised 
initially at fair value plus any directly attributable 
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, held 
to maturity financial assets are measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest method, less any 
impairment losses.

The Hospital makes limited use of this classification 
because any sale or reclassification of more than an 
insignificant amount of held to maturity investments 
not close to their maturity, would result in the whole 
category being reclassified as available-for-sale. The 
held to maturity category includes certain term deposits 
and debt securities for which the Hospital intends to 
hold to maturity.

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through 
net result are categorised as such at trade date, or 
if they are classified as held for trading or designated 
as such upon initial recognition. Financial instrument 
assets are designated at fair value through profit or 
loss on the basis that the financial assets form part of 
a group of financial assets that are managed based on 
their fair values and have their performance evaluated 
in accordance with documented risk management and 
investment strategies. Financial instruments at fair value 
through net result are initially measured at fair value; 
attributable transaction costs are expensed as incurred. 
Subsequently, any changes in fair value are recognised 
in the net result as other economic flows. The Hospital 
recognises certain debt securities in this category.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost are initially 
recognised on the date they are originated. They 
are initially measured at fair value plus any directly 
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial 
recognition, these financial instruments are measured 
at amortised cost with any difference between the initial 
recognised amount and the redemption value being 
recognised in profit and loss over the period of the 
interest bearing liability, using the effective interest rate 
method. The Hospital recognises the following liabilities 
in this category:

• payables (excluding statutory payables); and

• borrowings (including finance lease liabilities).

Derivative financial instruments are classified as 
held for trading financial assets and liabilities. They 
are initially recognised at fair value on the date on 
which a derivative contract is entered into. Derivatives 
are carried as assets when their fair value is positive 
and as liabilities when their fair value is negative. Any 
gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of 
derivatives after initial recognition are recognised in the 
consolidated comprehensive operating statement as an 
‘other economic flow’ included in the net result.

Offsetting financial instruments: Financial instrument 
assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount 
presented in the consolidated balance sheet when, and 
only when, the Hospital concerned has a legal right 
to offset the amounts and intend either to settle on a 
net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously.

Some master netting arrangements do not result in an 
offset of balance sheet assets and liabilities. Where the 
Hospital does not have a legally enforceable right to 
offset recognised amounts, because the right to offset 
is enforceable only on the occurrence of future events 
such as default, insolvency or bankruptcy, they are 
reported on a gross basis.

Derecognition of financial assets: A financial asset 
(or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part 
of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised 
when:

• the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have 
expired; or

• the Hospital retains the right to receive cash flows 
from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to 
pay them in full without material delay to a third party 
under a ‘pass through’ 

• arrangement; or   

• the Hospital has transferred its rights to receive cash 
flows from the asset and either: 

     –    has transferred substantially all the risks and                      

           rewards of the asset; or                                         

     –    has neither transferred nor retained substantially  

           all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has 

           transferred control of the asset.

Where the Hospital has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all the risks and rewards or transferred 
control, the asset is recognised to the extent of the 
Hospital’s continuing involvement in the asset.
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Note 7.1: Financial Instruments (continued)

Note 7.2: Contingent Assets & Contingent Liabilities

Impairment of financial assets: At the end of each 
reporting period, the Hospital assesses whether 
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or 
group of financial assets is impaired. All financial 
instrument assets, except those measured at fair value 
through profit or loss, are subject to annual review for 
impairment.

The allowance is the difference between the financial 
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of 
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective 
interest rate. In assessing impairment of statutory (non-
contractual) financial assets, which are not financial 
instruments, professional judgement is applied in 
assessing materiality using estimates, averages and 
other computational methods in accordance with AASB 
136 Impairment of Assets.

Reclassification of financial instruments: 
Subsequent to initial recognition and under rare 
circumstances, non-derivative financial instruments 
assets that have not been designated at fair value 
through profit or loss upon recognition, may be 
reclassified out of the fair value through profit or loss 
category, if they are no longer held for the purpose of 
selling or repurchasing in the near term.

Financial instrument assets that meet the definition of 
loans and receivables may be reclassified out of the fair 

value through profit and loss category into the loans and 
receivables category, where they would have met the 
definition of loans and receivables had they not been 
required to be classified as fair value through profit and 
loss. In these cases, the financial instrument assets may 
be reclassified out of the fair value through profit and 
loss category, if there is the intention and ability to hold 
them for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

Available-for-sale financial instrument assets that 
meet the definition of loans and receivables may be 
reclassified into the loans and receivables category if 
there is the intention and ability to hold them for the 
foreseeable future or until maturity.

Derecognition of financial liabilities: A financial 
liability is derecognised when the obligation under the 
liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another 
from the same lender on substantially different terms, 
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially 
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as 
a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition 
of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying 
amounts is recognised as an ‘other economic flow’ in 
the comprehensive operating statement.

There are no known contingent liabilities or assets at balance date that will have a material effect on the financial 
statements.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised in the balance sheet, but are disclosed by way of 
note and, if quantifiable, are measured at nominal value. Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are presented 
inclusive of GST receivable or payable respectively.
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Note 8: Other Disclosures
This section includes additional material disclosures required by accounting standards or otherwise, for the 
understanding of this annual report.

Structure

8.1 Equity

8.2 Reconciliation of net result for the year to net cash 
flow from operating activities

8.3 Responsible Persons disclosures

8.4 Executive officer disclosures

8.5 Related Parties

8.6 Remuneration of Auditors

8.7 AASBs issued that are not yet effective

8.8 Events occurring after the Balance Sheet date

8.9 Controlled Entities

8.10 Economic Dependency

8.11 Alternative Presentation of Comprehensive 
Operating Statement

Note 8.1: Equity
Total 
2018 
$’000

Total 
2017 
$’000 

(a) Surpluses

Property, Plant & Equipment Revaluation Surplus

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 17,546 17,421

Revaluation Increment/(Decrements)

 - Land  - 125

 - Buildings  -  - 

Balance at the end of the reporting period 17,546 17,546

Represented by:

– Land 1,219 1,219

– Buildings 16,327 16,327

Total Surpluses 17,546 17,546

(b) Contributed Capital

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period  11,532  11,532 

Capital contribution received from Victorian Government  -  - 

Capital Repayments  -  - 

Balance at the end of the reporting period 11,532 11,532

(c) Accumulated Surpluses/(Deficits)

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 160 2,744

Net Result for the Year  (2,208)  (2,584)

Balance at the end of the reporting period  (2,048) 160

(d) Total Equity at the end of financial year 27,030 29,238

Contributed Capital

Consistent with Australian Accounting Interpretation 1038 
Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public 
Sector Entities and FRD 119A Contributions by Owners, 
appropriations for additions to the net asset base have 
been designated as contributed capital. 

Other transfers that are in the nature of contributions to 
or distributions by owners that have been designated as 
contributed capital are also treated as contributed capital.

Transfers of net assets arising from administrative 
restructurings are treated as contributions by owners. 
Transfers of net liabilities arising from administrative 
restructures are to go through the Comprehensive 
Operating Statement.

Property, Plant & Equipment Revaluation Surplus

The asset revaluation surplus is used to record 
increments and decrements on the revaluation of non-
current physical assets.
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Note 8.2: Reconciliation of Net Result for the Year to Net Cash 
flow from Operating Activities

Total 
2018 
$’000

Total 
2017 
$’000 

Net result for the Year  (2,208)  (2,584)

Non-cash movements:

Depreciation and Amortisation  3,135  3,177 

Hume Rural Health Alliance  (113)  (180)

Provision for Doubtful Debts  7  1 

Movements included in investing and financing activities

Net (Gain)/Loss from Disposal of Plant and Equipment - 23 

Movements in assets and liabilities:

Change in Operating Assets & Liabilities

(Increase)/Decrease in Receivables  (1,051)  (263)

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets  (48)  - 

Increase/(Decrease) in Payables  737  430 

Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities  (1,365)  1,078 

Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions  550  357 

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories  (62)  19 

NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES   (418)  2,058 
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Note 8.3: Responsible Persons Disclosures

Responsible Ministers: Period

The Honourable Jill Hennessy, Minister for Health, Minister for Ambulance Services 1/07/2017 - 30/06/2018

The Honourable Martin Foley, Minister for Mental Health, Minister for Housing, Disability & Ageing, 
Minister for Creative Industries, Minister for Equality 1/07/2017 - 30/06/2018

Governing Boards

P. Nottle (Chairperson) 1/07/2017 - 30/06/2018

U. Lonnqvist 1/07/2017 - 30/06/2018

J. McGill 1/07/2017 - 30/06/2018

V. Childs 1/07/2017 - 30/06/2018

K. Harris 1/07/2017 - 30/06/2018

W. Kelly 1/07/2017 - 30/06/2018

T. Lannan 1/07/2017 - 30/06/2018

W. Arnott 1/07/2017 - 30/06/2018

C. Adams 1/07/2017 - 30/06/2018

Accountable Officer

S. Race (Chief Executive Officer) 1/07/2017 - 30/06/2018

Remuneration of Responsible Persons

The number of responsible persons are shown in their relevant income bands:

Income Band Total 2018 No. Total 2017 No.

$0 - $10,000 9 9

$180,000 - 199,999 1 1

Total Numbers 10 10

Total remuneration received or due and receivable by Responsible 
Persons from the reporting entity amounted to: $188,203 $187,237

In accordance with the Ministerial Directions issued by the Minister for Finance under the Financial Management Act 
1994, the following disclosures are made regarding responsible persons for the reporting period.
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Note 8.4: Remuneration of Executives
The number of executive officers, other than Ministers and Accountable Officers, and their total remuneration during 
the reporting period are shown in the table below. Total annualised employee equivalent provides a measure of full 
time equivalent executive officers over the reporting period.

Remuneration comprises employee benefits in all forms of consideration paid, payable or provided in exchange for 
services rendered, and is disclosed in the following categories.

Short-term Employee Benefits include amounts such as wages, salaries, annual leave or sick leave that are 
usually paid or payable on a regular basis, as well as non-monetary benefits such as allowances and free or 
subsidised goods or services. 

Post-employment Benefits include pensions and other retirement benefits paid or payable on a discrete basis 
when employment has ceased.

Other Long-term Benefits include long service leave, other long-service benefit or deferred compensation.

Termination Benefits include termination of employment payments, such as severance packages.

Notes:

(ii) TThe total number of executive officers includes persons who meet the definition of Key Management Personnel (KMP) of the entity under AASB 
124 Related Party Disclosures and are also reported within the related party disclosure (Note 8.5).

(iii) Annualised employee equivilent is based on working 38 ordinary hours per week over the reporting period.

Remuneration of Executive Officers 
(Including Key Management Personnel disclosed in note 8.5)

Total Remuneration

2018 
$

2017 
$

Short-term employee benefits  460,753  355,577 

Post-employment benefits  31,101  30,120 

Other long-term benefits  7,194  6,856 

Termination benefits  -  - 

Total remuneration (i)(ii)  499,048  392,553 

Total number of executives 4 3

Total annualised employee equivilant (AEE) (iii) 3.20 3.00
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Note 8.5: Related Parties

The hospital is a wholly owned and controlled entity of the State of Victoria. Related parties of the hospital include:

• all key management personnel (KMP) and their close family members;

• all cabinet ministers (where applicable) and their close family members; and

• all hospitals and public sector entities that are controlled and consolidated into the whole of state consolidated 
financial statements.

KMPs are those people with the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the 
Hospital and its controlled entities, directly or indirectly. 

The Board of Directors and the Executive Directors of the Hospital and it’s controlled entities are deemed to be KMPs.

The compensation detailed below excludes the salaries and benefits the Portfolio Ministers receive. The Minister’s 
remuneration and allowances is set by the Parliamentary Salaries and Superannuation Act 1968, and is reported 
within the Department of Parliamentary Services’ Financial Report.

Compensation - KMPs
2018 
$’000

2017 
$’000

Short term employee benefits 672,821 521,786

Post-employment benefits 46,972 45,910

Other long-term benefits 12,458 12,093

Termination benefits  -  - 

Total 732,251 579,789

The Kilmore & District Hospital P. Nottle Board  Chair

The Kilmore & District Hospital U. Lonnqvist Board Director

The Kilmore & District Hospital J. McGill Board Director

The Kilmore & District Hospital V. Childs Board Director

The Kilmore & District Hospital K. Harris Board Director

The Kilmore & District Hospital W. Kelly Board Director

The Kilmore & District Hospital T. Lannan Board Director

The Kilmore & District Hospital W. Arnott Board Director

The Kilmore & District Hospital C. Adams Board Director

The Kilmore & District Hospital S. Race Chief Executive Officer

The Kilmore & District Hospital K. Pryde Director of Clinical & Aged Care Services

The Kilmore & District Hospital K. Gilchrist Director of Development & Improvement

The Kilmore & District Hospital C. Clark Director of Finance & Support Services

The Kilmore & District Hospital M. Duffy Director of Medical Services

Significant transactions with government-related 
entities

The Kilmore and District Hospital received funding from 
the Department of Health and Human Services of $15.1 
million (2017: $13.2 million). 

Expenses incurred by the Hospital in delivering services 
and outputs are in accordance with Health Purchasing 
Victoria requirements. Goods and services including 
procurement, diagnostics, patient meals and multi-site 
operational support are provided by other Victorian 
Health Service Providers on commercial terms.

Professional medical indemnity insurance and other 
insurance products are obtained from a Victorian Public 
Financial Corporation.

Treasury Risk Management Directions require the 
Hospital to hold cash (in excess of working capital) and 
investments, and source all borrowings from Victorian 
Public Financial Corporations.

Transactions with KMPs and Other Related Parties

Given the breadth and depth of State government 
activities, related parties transact with the Victorian 
public sector in a manner consistent with other 
members of the public e.g. stamp duty and other 
government fees and charges. Further employment 
of processes within the Victorian public sector occur 
on terms and conditions consistent with the Public 
Administration Act 2004 and Codes of Conduct 
and Standards issued by the Victorian Public Sector 
Commission. Procurement processes occur on terms 
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Note 8.6. Remuneration of Auditors

Note 8.5: Related Parties (continued)

Note 8.7. AASBs Issued That Are Not Yet Effective

2018 2017 

Victorian Auditor-General’s Office $’000 $’000

Audit and review of financial statement 14 14

TOTAL REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS 14 14

Standard/Interpretation Summary Applicable 
for annual 
reporting 
periods 
beginning on

Impact on public sector entity 
financial statements

AASB 9 Financial 
Instruments

The key changes introduced 
by AASB 9 include simplified 
requirements for the classification and 
measurement of financial assets, a 
new hedging accounting model and 
a revised impairment loss model to 
recognise impairment losses earlier, 
as opposed to the current approach 
that recognises impairment only when 
incurred.

1 Jan 2018 The assessment has identified that 
the amendments are likely to result 
in earlier recognition of impairment 
losses and at more regular intervals. 
The initial application of AASB 9 is 
not expected to significantly impact 
the financial positon however there 
will be a change to the way financial 
instruments are classified and new 
disclosure requirements.

AASB 2014-1 Amendments 
to Australian Accounting 
Standards [Part E 
Financial Instruments]

Amends various AASs to reflect the 
AASB’s decision to defer the mandatory 
application date of AASB 9 to annual 
reporting periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2018, and to amend 
Reduced Disclosure requirements.

1 Jan 2018 This amending standard will defer 
the application period of AASB 9 
to the 2018-19 reporting period 
in accordance with the transition 
requirements.

AASB 2014-7 Amendments 
to Australian Accounting 
Standards arising from 
AASB 9

Amends various AASs to incorporate 
the consequential amendments arising 
from the issuance of AASB 9.

1 Jan 2018 The assessment has indicated that 
there will be no significant impact 
for the public sector.

AASB 15 Revenue from 
Contracts with Customers

The core principle of AASB 15 requires 
an entity to recognise revenue when 
the entity satisfies a performance 
obligation by transferring a promised 
good or service to a customer. Note 
that amending standard AASB 2015-8 
Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards – Effective Date of AASB 15 
has deferred the effective date of 
AASB 15 to annual reporting periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2018, 
instead of 1 January 2017.

1 Jan 2018 The changes in revenue recognition 
requirements in AASB 15 may 
result in changes to the timing 
and amount of revenue recorded 
in the financial statements. The 
Standard will also require additional 
disclosures on service revenue and 
contract modifications.

Certain new Australian accounting standards have been published that are not mandatory for the 30 June 2018 
reporting period. Department of Treasury and Finance assesses the impact of all these new standards and advises 
the Hospital of their applicability and early adoption where applicable.

As at 30 June 2018, the following standards and interpretations had been issued by the AASB but were not yet 
effective. They become effective for the first financial statements for reporting periods commencing after the stated 
operative dates as detailed in the table below. The Hospital has not and does not intend to adopt these standards early.

and conditions consistent with the Victorian Government 
Procurement Board requirements.

Outside of normal citizen type transactions with the 
Department of Health and Human Services, all other 
related party transactions that involved KMPs and their 
close family members have been entered into on an 
arm’s length basis. Transactions are disclosed when 
they are considered material to the users of the financial 

report in making and evaluation decisions about the 
allocation of scare resources.

There were no related party transactions with Cabinet 
Ministers required to be disclosed in 2018.

There were no related party transactions required to 
be disclosed for the Hospital Board of Directors and 
Executive Directors in 2018.
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Standard/Interpretation Summary Applicable 
for annual 
reporting 
periods 
beginning on

Impact on public sector entity 
financial statements

AASB 2014-5 Amendments 
to Australian Accounting 
Standards arising from 
AASB 15

Amends the measurement of trade 
receivables and the recognition of 
dividends as follow:

• Trade receivables, that do not 
have a significant financing 
component, are to be measured 
at their transaction price, at initial 
recognition. 

• Dividends are recognised in the 
profit and loss only when: 
 - the entity’s right to receive                        

payment of the dividend is 
established;

 - it is probable that the economic 
benefits associated with the 
dividend will flow to the entity; 
and

 - the amount can be measured 
reliably.

1 January 
2018, except 
amendments 
to AASB 9 
(Dec 2009) 
and AASB 9 
(Dec 2010) 
apply 
1 January 
2018.

The assessment has indicated that 
there will be no significant impact 
for the public sector.

AASB 2015-8 Amendments 
to Australian Accounting 
Standards – Effective Date 
of AASB 15

This standard defers the mandatory 
effective date of AASB 15 from 
1 January 2017 to 1 January 2018.

1 Jan 18 This amending standard will defer 
the application period of AASB 15 
for for-profit entities to the 2018-19 
reporting period in accordance with 
the transition requirements.

AASB 2016-3 Amendments 
to Australian Accounting 
Standards – Clarifications 
to AASB 15

This Standard amends AASB 15 to 
clarify the requirements on identifying 
performance obligations, principal 
versus agent considerations and the 
timing of recognising revenue from 
granting a licence. The amendments 
require:

• A promise to transfer to a customer 
a good or service that is ‘distinct’ 
to be recognised as a separate 
performance obligation;

• For items purchased online, the 
entity is a principal if it obtains 
control of the good or service prior 
to transferring to the customer; and

• For licences identified as being 
distinct from other goods or 
services in a contract, entities need 
to determine whether the licence 
transfers to the customer over time 
(right to use) or at a point in time 
(right to access).

1 Jan 18 The assessment has indicated that 
there will be no significant impact 
for the public sector, other than 
the impact identified for AASB 15 
above.

AASB 2016-7 Amendments 
to Australian Accounting 
Standards – Deferral of 
AASB 15 for Not-for-Profit 
Entities

This standard defers the mandatory 
effective date of AASB 15 for not-for-
profit entities from 1 January 2018 to 1 
January 2019.

1 Jan 19 This amending standard will defer 
the application period of AASB 15 
for not-for-profit entities to the 
2019-20 reporting period.

Note 8.8. AASBs Issued That Are Not Yet Effective (continued)
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Standard/Interpretation Summary Applicable 
for annual 
reporting 
periods 
beginning on

Impact on public sector entity 
financial statements

AASB 2016-8 Amendments 
to Australian Accounting 
Standards – Australian 
Implementation Guidance 
for Not-for-Profit Entities

This Standard amends AASB 9 and 
AASB 15 to include requirements and 
implementation guidance to assist 
not-for-profit entities in applying the 
respective standards to particular 
transactions and events.

The amendments:

• require non-contractual receivable 
arising from statutory requirements 
(i.e. taxes, rates and fines) to be 
initially measured and recognised in 
accordance with AASB 9 as if those 
receivables are financial instruments; 
and

• clarifies circumstances when a 
contract with a customer is within 
the scope of AASB 15.

1-Jan-19 This standard clarifies the application 
of AASB 15 and AASB 9 in a not-for-
profit context. The areas within these 
standards that are amended for not-
for-profit application include:

AASB 9

• Statutory receivables are 
recognised and measured similarly 
to financial assets

AASB 15

• The “customer” does not need to 
be the recipient of goods and/or 
services;

• The “contract” could include an 
arrangement entered into under 
the direction of another party;

• Contracts are enforceable if 
they are enforceable by legal or 
“equivalent means”;

• Contracts do not have to have 
commercial substance, only 
economic substance; and

• Performance obligations need 
to be “sufficiently specific” to be 
able to apply AASB 15 to these 
transactions.

AASB 16 Leases The key changes introduced by AASB 
16 include the recognition of most 
operating leases (which are currently 
not recognised) on balance sheet 
which has an impact on net debt.

1 Jan 19 The assessment has indicated 
that most operating leases, with 
the exception of short term and 
low value leases will come on 
to the balance sheet and will be 
recognised as right of use assets 
with a corresponding lease liability. 
In the operating statement, the 
operating lease expense will be 
replaced by depreciation expense 
of the asset and an interest charge.                                           
There will be no change for lessors 
as the classification of operating and 
finance leases remains unchanged.

AASB 1058 Income of Not-
for-Profit Entities

This standard will replace AASB 
1004 Contributions and establishes 
principles for transactions that are not 
within the scope of AASB 15, where 
the consideration to acquire an asset 
is significantly less than fair value to 
enable not-for-profit entities to further 
their objectives. The restructure of 
administrative arrangement will remain 
under AASB 1004.

1 Jan 19 The current revenue recognition for 
grants is to recognise revenue up 
front upon receipt of the funds. 

This may change under AASB 
1058, as capital grants for the 
construction of assets will need 
to be deferred. Income will be 
recognised over time, upon 
completion and satisfaction of 
performance obligations for assets 
being constructed, or income will 
be recognised at a point in time for 
acquisition of assets.

The revenue recognition for 
operating grants will need to be 
analysed to establish whether the 
requirements under other applicable 
standards need to be considered 
for recognition of liabilities (which 
will have the effect of deferring 
the income associated with these 
grants). Only after that analysis 
would it be possible to conclude 
whether there are any changes to 
operating grants.

Note 8.8. AASBs Issued That Are Not Yet Effective (continued)
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Standard/Interpretation Summary Applicable 
for annual 
reporting 
periods 
beginning on

Impact on public sector entity 
financial statements

AASB 1059 Service 
Concession 
Arrangements: Grantor

This standard prescribes the 
accounting treatment of Public 
Private Partnership (PPP) 
arrangements involving a private 
sector operator providing public 
services related to a service 
concession asset on behalf of the 
State, for a specified period of 
time. For social infrastructure PPP 
arrangements, this would result in 
an earlier recognition of financial 
liabilities progressively over the 
construction period rather than at 
completion date. For economic 
infrastructure PPP arrangements, 
that were previously not on 
balance sheet, the standard 
will require recognition of these 
arrangements on-balance sheet.

1 Jan 2019 For an arrangement to be in scope of AASB 
1059 all of the following requirements are to 
be satisfied:

• Operator is providing public services 
using a service concession asset;

• Operator manages at ‘least some’ of 
public services under its own discretion;

• The State controls / regulates:

• What services are to be provided;

 - To whom; and

 - at what price

• State controls any significant residual 
interest in the asset.

If the arrangement does not satisfy all 
the above requirements the recognition 
will fall under the requirements of another 
applicable accounting standard.

Currently the social infrastructure PPPs are 
only recognised on the balance sheet at 
commercial acceptance. The arrangement 
will need to be progressively recognised as 
and when the asset is being constructed. 
This will have the impact of progressively 
recognising the financial liability and 
corresponding asset as the asset is being 
constructed.

For economic infrastructure PPP 
arrangements, that were previously not 
on balance sheet, the standard will require 
recognition of these arrangements on 
balance sheet. There will be no impact 
to net debt, as a deferred revenue liability 
will be recognised and amortised over the 
concession term.

AASB 17 Insurance 
Contracts

The new Australian standard 
eliminates inconsistencies and 
weaknesses in existing practices by 
providing a single principle-based 
framework to account for all types 
of insurance contracts, including 
reissuance contract that an insurer 
holds. It also provides requirements 
for presentation and disclosure to 
enhance comparability between 
entities.

1 Jan 2021 The assessment has indicated that there 
will be no significant impact for the public 
sector.

Note 8.8. AASBs Issued That Are Not Yet Effective (continued)

The following accounting pronouncements are also issued but not effective for the 2017-18 reporting period. At this 
stage, the preliminary assessment suggests they may have insignificant impacts on public sector reporting.

• AASB 2016-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards – Classification and Measurement of 
Share-based Payment Transactions

• AASB 2016-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards – Applying AASB 9 Financial Instruments with 
AASB 4 Insurance Contracts

• AASB 2017-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards – Transfers of Investment Property, Annual 
Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle and Other Amendments

• AASB 2017-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards – Clarifications to AASB 4

• AASB 2017-4 Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards – Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

• AASB 2017-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards – Effective Date of Amendments to AASB 10 
and AASB 128 and Editorial Corrections

• AASB 2017-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards – Prepayment Features with Negative 
Compensation

• AASB 2017-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards – Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint 
Ventures

• AASB 2018-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards – Annual Improvements 2015 – 2017 Cycle

• AASB 2018-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards – Plan Amendments, Curtailment or Settlement
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Note 8.8: Events Occurring After the Balance Sheet Date
There were no events occurring after balance date which would have a material effect on the financial statements.

Note 8.9: Jointly Controlled Operations and Assets

Kilmore & District Hospital’s interest in assets employed in the above jointly controlled operations are detailed below.                
The amounts are included in the financial statements under their respective categories:

The 2018 amounts disclosed above are based on the unaudited financial statements of the Hume Rural Health Alliance.

                  Ownership Interest

Name of Entity Principal Activity 2018 2017 

4.3% 4.4%

Hume Rural Health Alliance Information Systems

2018 
$’000

2017 
$’000 

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 237 159

Receivables 167 115

Prepayments 6 6

Total Current Assets 410 280

Non Current Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment 22 1

Intagible Assets 21 70

Lease Asset 37 61

Total Non Current Assets 80 132

Total Assets 490 412

Current Liabilities

Payables 21 22

Borrowings 19 29

Total Current Liabilities 40 51

Non-Current Liabilities

Borrowings 18 32

Total Non-Current Liabilities 18 32

Total Liabilities 58 83

Kilmore & District Hospital's interest in revenues and expenses resulting from jointly controlled operations is detailed below:

Revenues

Revenue from Operating Activities 350 375

Revenue from Non-Operating Activities 2 1

Capital Purpose Income 176 176

Total Revenue 528 552

Expenses

Employee Benefits 55 75

Other Expenses From Continuing Operations 243 256

Capital Purpose Expenditure 81  - 

Depreciation and Amortisation 34 39

Finance Charges 2 2

Total Expenses 415 372

Net Result 113 180
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Note 8.10: Economic Dependency

Note 8.11: Alternative Presentation of Comprehensive 
Operating Statement

The Kilmore & District Hospital is dependant on the Department of Health & and Human Services for the majority of 
its revenue used to operate the entity. At the date of this report, the Board of Directors has no reason to believe the 
Department will not continue to support The Kilmore & District Hospital. 

Note

Total
2018
$’000

Total
2017
$’000

Grants

 Operating 2.1  14,506  12,893 

 Capital 2.1  624  482 

Interest and Dividends 2.1  16  24 

Sales of Goods and Services 2.1  8,167  6,369 

Other Income

  Other capital income  408  526 

Total Revenue  23,721  20,294 

Employee Expenses 3.1 15,170 13,357

Operating Expenses

 Supplies and consumables 3.1  1,751  1,598 

 Non-salary labour costs 3.1  3,535  2,449 

 Other expenses 3.1  2,339  2,278 

Non-Operating Expenses

 Expenditure for Capital Purpose 3.1  -  6 

Depreciation and Amortisation 4.3  3,135  3,214 

Total Expenses 25,930 22,902

Net Result from Transactions - Net Operating Balance  (2,209)  (2,608)

Other economic flows included in net result

Revaluation of Long Service Leave  1  24 

Other economic flows included in net result  1  24 

Net Result   (2,208)  (2,584)

This alternative presentation reflects the format required for reporting to the Department of Treasury and Finance, which differs to the disclosures of 
certain transactions, in particular revenue and expenses, in the annual report.
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